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October 3, 2018 

 
The Board of Commissioners 
Jersey City Housing Authority 
Jersey City, New Jersey 07036 
 
The Jersey City Housing Authority (the “Authority” or “JCHA”) is pleased to submit its 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 
2018. The Authority’s Acting Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) / Comptroller prepared this 
report with contributions by staff and other departments within the Authority following 
guidelines recommended by the Government Finance Officers Association (“GFOA”) of the 
United States and Canada. Each contributor has our sincere appreciation for his or her work 
in the preparation of this document. The organization, form and contents of this report were 
prepared in accordance with the standards prescribed by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (“GASB”), the GFOA of the United States and Canada, the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”), and the U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (“HUD”).  
 
This report consists of four sections:  
 
(1) Introductory Section.  This section includes a transmittal letter, a chart of the 
Authority’s functional organization, and a list of the Authority’s principal officials.  
 
(2) Financial Section. This section includes the Independent Auditor’s Report, 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) of the financial statements, audited 
financial statements and notes to the basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2018.    This section also includes certain supplemental information, findings and 
recommendations and HUD required schedules.  
 
(3) Statistical Section.  This section includes various statements of unaudited financial, 
demographic and other miscellaneous data on the Authority and City of Jersey City for the 
past ten years.  
 
(4) Compliance Section.  This section includes the auditor’s reports on internal control and 
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts and grants. Also included JCHA 
responses to GFOA’s comments and suggestions for improvement. 
 
The Authority’s financial statements, as required by HUD and Office of Management and 
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Budget’s (OMB) “Super Circular” 2 CFR Part 200 and State of New Jersey Department of 
the Treasury issued Circular Letter 15-08-OMB. The HUD’s Real Estate Assessment Center 
(“REAC”) requires Public Housing Agencies (“PHAs”) to annually publish a complete set 
of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles (“GAAP”) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
by a firm of licensed Certified Public Accountants (CPAs). Pursuant to that requirement, we 
hereby issue the CAFR of the Jersey City Housing Authority for the year ended March 31, 
2018 audited by Novogradac & Company LLP, a firm of licensed CPAs. The independent 
auditors issued an unmodified opinion on the Authority’s financial statements for the fiscal 
year ended March 31, 2018, indicating that they were fairly presented, in all material 
respects, and in conformity with GAAP. The Independent auditor’s report is presented as 
the first component of the financial section of this CAFR.  
 
The data presented in this report is the responsibility of the management of the 
Authority.   To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data as presented is accurate in all 
material aspects, is presented in a manner designed to fairly state the financial position and 
results of operations of the Authority, and all disclosures necessary have been included to 
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Authority’s affairs.   As required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, management has 
provided a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany these financial 
statements entitled Management’s Discussion and Analysis. The Authority’s MD&A can be 
found immediately following the Independent Auditor’s Report.    This letter of transmittal 
is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. 

Profile of the Authority 

The Authority was created by a City of Jersey City ordinance in accordance with the 
State of New Jersey Local Housing Authorities Law in 1938 (N.J.S.A. 40A:12A). Pursuant 
to the procedures of the “Local Authorities Fiscal Control Law,”P.L.1983, C.313 
(C.40A:5A-1 et seq.), the governing body of the Authority is consist of seven members. 
Six members are appointed by the City Council/Mayor and one by the 
Governor/Commissioner of Department of Community Affairs (DCA) of the State of 
New Jersey.  

The Authority is the second largest PHA in the State of New Jersey provides safe, 
decent and affordable housing to over 4,600 low and moderate income Jersey City 
residents. Through the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher (“HCV”) Program, the 
Authority assists 9,588 residents in locating and renting housing in privately owned 
buildings.  
 
As of March 31, 2018 the Authority owns and operates 1,845 low-rent Public Housing 
rental Annual Contribution Contract (“ACC”) units located in 9 Asset Management 
Properties (AMPs), 126 non-federal units in two Affordable Housing developments. 
There are 944 units within 13 Mixed-Finance developments, of which 580 are Public 
Housing ACC Units.  
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HUD has also contracted with the Authority for the support of 4,342 Housing Choice 
Vouchers. Under the HCV Program, the Authority administers contracts with private 
landlords owning rental property. The Authority subsidizes the family’s rent through 
housing assistance payment made to the landlord. The program is administered under 
an ACC with HUD.  

The Authority also administers 36 Shelter plus Care Program / Special Needs 
Assistance (“SNAP”) vouchers, 95 Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room 
Occupancy (SRO) Program vouchers and 190 Mainstream 5 Year Program vouchers. 

The Authority’s mission is ‘creating and investing in quality affordable housing 
opportunities for our residents and communities we serve’. 

The Authority's basic financial statements consist of a single enterprise fund, 
which includes the following programs: 

 Low Rent Public Housing (“LRPH”) Program 
 Public Housing Capital Fund (“CFP”) Program 
 Revitalization of Severely Distressed Public Housing (“HOPE VI”) Program  
 Resident Opportunity and Self-sufficiency  (“ROSS”) Program 
 Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher (“HCV”) Program  
 Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy (“SRO”) 
 Section 8 Mainstream 5 Supportive Housing for Persons with Disabilities Program  
 Shelter Plus Care Program (“SPC”) / Special Needs Assistance (“SNAP”) 
 State and Local Programs 

Please refer to Note 1 to the financial statements for a description of Authority 
programs. For further analysis, we have also included supplemental financial 
schedules for the programs individually, which can be found following the notes to the 
basic financial statements. 
 
Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

To assess the Authority’s overall financial condition, the following information 
contained within the Authority’s financial statements should be considered in 
connection with an understanding of the following major factors affecting its 
financial condition:  

Congressional Budget and HUD Policy. As a PHA, the Authority's primary source 
of funding is HUD. The amount of funding received from HUD is affected by 
Congressional housing legislation and the federal budget. The Authority continually 
monitors changes and trends in the Congressional Budget and HUD policy to adjust 
its strategy and financial planning accordingly.  
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Operating Subsidy. Since Calendar Year (“CY”) 2012 HUD funded Operating 
Subsidies to PHAs an average of 87.74% of its full eligibility. HUD’s final 
proration for CY 2017 was 93.10% and CY 2018 funding is still not finalized. 
During Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2018, the Authority received $10.6 million in operating 
subsidy from HUD, $5.9 million in Public Housing Capital Fund Program. Also 
during FY 2018, the Authority received $ 45.9 million in Housing Assistance 
Payments and Administrative fees combined from HUD for the Section 8 Housing 
Choice Voucher Programs. 

Financial Results and Outlook 
The Authority's operating loss as of March 31, 2018 was $5,195,529 as compared 
to $4,949,770 for the previous year. Operating Loss increased by $245,754 or 4.96% 
primarily due to decrease in operating revenues by $4.0 million coupled  with 
decrease in operating expenses by $3.7 million. 

Increased Revenue. Rent provides a significant portion of the Authority’s income. 
The Authority began phasing in a series of rent increases targeted to residents 
who were paying less than 30 percent of their income towards rent. Due to a new 
HUD requirement and change in federal law, JCHA will increase the flat rents 
over the next three years to 80 percent of Fair Market Rent (FMR). Flat Rents are 
the maximum rents charged for rent and are based on rent charged for similar 
units in the private non-subsidized rental market. About 110 JCHA households 
that pay less than 30% of their income towards rent will be impacted by this rent 
increase. The Authority has also procured a debt collection agency to go after and 
collect from the vacated tenants owing funds to the Authority. 

Improve Central Office and Administrative Efficiency. Through the years, the 
Authority has taken aggressive measures to contain spending through various expense 
reduction programs. Operating Budget reflects initiatives through which central 
office and administrative office activities will be streamlined and resources 
redirected to the frontline. Although the Authority has been taking measures to control 
costs, savings have been offset by increases in certain other costs such as employee 
entitlements including pension, and health insurance. The Authority’s unfunded 
pension liability at March 31, 2018 is approximately $29.9 million. JCHA continues to 
use a “pay-as-you-go” approach to pension and health insurance costs. Due to JCHA’s 
funding challenges, as with many other governmental entities, these liabilities remains 
unfunded, and there is no clear source of future funding. 

Energy Conservation. The Authority entered into a lease purchase agreement with 
Siemens Building Technologies, Inc. on November 23, 2010 for energy savings 
equipment expiring in November, 2025.  The assets recorded under the capital lease 
totaled $8,500,000, and are included in capital assets on the Statements of Net Position.  
Under terms of the refinanced lease, monthly payments of $67,951 including interest at 
2.24% are due through November, 2025.   
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Public Housing Assessment System (“PHAS”). During 2011, HUD issued PHAS Interim 
Rule, which revised the previous PHAS guidelines. Under the PHAS Interim Rule, the 
performance of Public Housing Agencies (“PHAs”) is measured for a maximum total 
score of 100 in the following categories:  
 
Physical Assessment;   40 points,  
Financial Condition;    25 points,  
Management Operations;   25 points and,  
Capital Fund Program;   10 points.  

Under the interim Rule, HUD will use indicators that cover both the Financial 
Condition and Management Operations components to assess the financial 
performance of PHAs. The Authority overall score for Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 
2017, under the Interim Rule was 68, which designates the Authority as a Sub-Standard 
Management and received a passing financial score of 21 out 25. The Authority 
received a financial score of 23 out 25 on its FYE 2018 approved unaudited FDS. The 
final PHAS score for Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2018 will not be released by HUD until 
after the review and approval of the audited Financial Data Schedules (“FDS”) by the REAC 
team.  

Section Eight Management Assessment Program (SEMAP). The SEMAP measures the 
performance of the PHAs that administer the Housing Choice Voucher program in 14 
key areas. The 14 key indicators of PHA performance are:  

(i) Proper selection of applicants from the housing choice voucher waiting list,  
(ii) Sound determination of reasonable rent for each unit leased,  
(iii) Establishment of payment standards within the required range of the HUD 

fair market rent, 
(iv) Accurate verification of family income,  
(v) Timely annual reexaminations of family income, 
(vi) Correct calculation of the tenant share of the rent and the housing assistance 

payment,  
(vii) Maintenance of a current schedule of allowances for tenant utility costs, 
(viii) Ensure units comply with the housing quality standards before families enter 

into leases and PHAs enter into housing assistance contracts,  
(ix) Timely annual housing quality inspections,  
(x) Performing of quality control inspections to ensure housing quality,  
(xi) Ensure that landlords and tenants promptly correct housing quality 

deficiencies,  
(xii) Ensure that all available housing choice vouchers are used,  
(xiii) Expand housing choice outside areas of poverty or minority concentration, 

and  
(xiv) Enroll families in the family self-sufficiency (FSS) program as required and 

help FSS families achieve increases in employment income. 
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SEMAP helps HUD target monitoring and assistance to PHA programs that need the 
most improvement. The Authority has been receiving ‘High Performer’ designation on 
SEMAP since FY 2007. The final score for the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2018, is 103, 
which designates the Authority as a High Performer once again.  

Awards and Acknowledgements 
The GFOA of the United States and Canada awarded the third consecutive Certificate 
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Authority for its CAFR 
for the year ended March 31, 2017. The FY 2017 Certificate is displayed right after this 
page of this document. This is the fourth consecutive year that the Authority is 
competing for this prestigious award. The Certificate of Achievement is the highest 
form of recognition for excellence in state and local government financial reporting. 
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish 
an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR that demonstrates a constructive 
“spirit of full disclosure.” This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements.  

The GFOA's Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting submission 
deadline is six months after the fiscal year end. The Authority has issued its audited 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, accompanying Single Audit 
Report on August 30, 2018, four months earlier than required by HUD. Due to the 
departure of the Chief Financial Officer on September 7, 2018, GFOA granted and 
approved JCHA a 30-day extension for the submission deadline of October 31, 2018. 
This has afforded the Authority the opportunity to compete for the GFOA’s Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. A Certificate of Achievement is 
valid for a period of one year only. However, we believe that our current CAFR 
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its 
eligibility for another certificate. 

I wish to express my gratitude and appreciation to the entire staff in the Accounting 
and Finance Department, whose daily efforts, skills and dedication to improve the 
accountability and make the quality of this report possible. Also, I wish to thank all 
the departments especially the Information Technology Department for their 
assistance in providing the data necessary to prepare this report.  
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Arlyn Agustin 
Acting Chief Financial Officer / Comptroller 

 

Comments concerning this report should be addressed to:   
  Attn: Arlyn Agustin, Acting Chief Financial Officer / Comptroller
Accounting & Finance Dept ‐ Jersey City Housing Authority 
400 US Highway #1, Jersey City, NJ 07306  
or dent via email to aagustin@jcha.us  
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Since 2013, all of JCHA's properties are smoke-free. The Jersey City Housing Authority has 6 conventional public housing developments (Marion 
Gardens, Booker T. Washington, Hudson Gardens, Holland Gardens, Montgomery Gardens and Curries Woods), 2 non-federal affordable housing 
developments (254 Bergen Avenue and Arlington Gardens), 2 elderly/disabled developments (Berry Gardens and Thomas J. Stewart Apartments), 
and 8 privately managed HOPE VI developments (Lafayette Village, Lafayette Sr. Living Center, Pacific Court, Woodward Terrace, Gloria Robinson 
Court Homes, Barbara Place Terrace, Ocean Pointe East & West, Glennview Townhouses). 

Source: www.jcha-gov.us 
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Jersey City Ward Map (below)     

 

Source: https://data.jerseycitynj.gov/map/+4bf23a3929e24f47/edit/ 

Map of City of Jersey City (below) 

Source www. https://www.google.com/maps 
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Ever wonder if your decision to live in the thrust of New York City's chaos was the right one? 

Uncertain about your choice to call Colorado home year-round? Are you considering a move? You 

might want to check out a new study about the most livable cities in the country by personal finance 

firm SmartAsset. 

Taking a look at the biggest 93 cities in America, the firm measured their level of livability by 

comparing a set of factors: violence and property crime rates, unemployment rates, walkability, 

incomes relative to housing costs and population density. Spoiler alert: Jersey City ranked at 

number one with the third-highest average income after housing cost ($35,452). 

Arguably unsurprisingly given the fervor with which California residents sing its praises, the 

Golden State turns out to be the most livable state in the country, with eight of its cities making the 

top 25. 

Source: https://www.timeout.com/usa/blog/this-is-the-most-livable-city-in-america-102816  
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Source: https://www.cnbc.com/2016/11/01/jersey‐city‐tops‐list‐of‐the‐25‐most‐livable‐cities‐in‐the‐us.html 
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

MARCH 31, 2018

ASSETS
                                  

Current assets:
 Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,121,270
 Tenant security deposits 432,263
 Accounts receivable, net 2,309,048
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets 884,111
 Inventories 768,379

Total current assets 12,515,071

Non-current assets:
   Restricted cash 1,103,018
   Notes receivable, long term 75,000,546
   Capital assets, net 76,577,165

Total non-current assets 152,680,729

Total assets 165,195,800

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

State of New Jersey P.E.R.S. 8,300,758

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 173,496,558

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

 LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,342,111
Accrued expenses 520,870
Accrued compensated absences, current 243,753
Tenant security deposits 432,263
Prepaid tenant rent 171,476
Current portion of capital lease 600,819
Current portion of loans and bonds payable 916,764
Other current liabilities 455,970

Total current liabilities 4,684,026

Non-current liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 2,193,776
Capital lease, net of current portion 4,206,891
Loans and bonds payable, net of current portion 16,586,103
Net pension liability 29,938,044
Non-current liabilities - other 269,502

Total non-current liabilities 53,194,316

Total  liabilities 57,878,342

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

State of New Jersey P.E.R.S. 8,332,658

NET POSITION

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 62,222,016
Restricted 75,834,062
Unrestricted (deficit) (30,770,520)

Total net position 107,285,558

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources 
      and net position $ 173,496,558

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Operating revenues:
Tenant revenue $ 10,115,213
HUD operating grants 63,076,228
Other revenues 2,735,786

Total operating revenues 75,927,227

Operating expenses:
Administrative 9,733,626
Tenant services 369,661
Utilities 4,582,666
Ordinary maintenance and operations 10,344,708
Protective services 52,630
Insurance 1,136,692
General 2,811,622
Extraordinary maintenance 1,043,430
Housing assistance payments 44,875,013
Depreciation 6,172,708

Total operating expenses 81,122,756

Operating loss (5,195,529)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 36,225
Mortgage interest income 2,697,027
Interest expense (500,775)

Net non-operating revenue 2,232,477

Loss before capital grants (2,963,052)

Capital grants 3,381,482

Change in net position 418,430

Net position, beginning of year 106,867,128

Net position, end of year $ 107,285,558

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from grantors $ 66,038,864
Cash received from tenants and others 12,961,665
Cash paid to employees (9,642,396)
Cash paid to suppliers and vendors (66,055,885)

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,302,248

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Interest paid (500,775)
Purchases of capital assets (3,381,482)
Capital grants received 3,381,482
Principal payments on loans payable (1,417,869)

Net cash used in capital and related 
    financing activities (1,918,644)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Issuance of notes receivable (594,655)
Collection of notes receivable 75,244
Investment income 36,225

Net cash used in investing activities (483,186)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 900,418

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 8,756,133

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 9,656,551

A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
 to the Statement of Net Position is as follows:

  Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,121,270
  Tenant security deposits 432,263
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,103,018
  

$ 9,656,551

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided
    by operating activities:

Operating loss $ (5,195,529)

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
  provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 6,172,708
Los on disposition of capital assets 218,403
Bad debt expense - tennat rents 149,430

Changes in assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows:
Accounts receivable - HUD 2,962,636
Accounts receivable - tenants (127,412)
Accounts receivable - misc (14,778)
Prepaid expenses (75,431)
Inventory (286,467)
Deferred outflows of resources 1,153,734
Accounts payable (1,278,790)
Deferred inflows of resources 5,180,369
Net pension liability (5,891,460)
Accrued expenses (120,683)
Accrued compensated absences 625,543
Tenant security deposits 23,113
Unearned revenue 80,313
Other current liabilities (269,323)
Other liabilities (4,128)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 3,302,248

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
18CAFR FYE 03/2018 44 AA 10/31/2018

ArlynA
Text Box



JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.  Organization

The Jersey City Housing Authority (the "Authority") is a governmental, public corporation
created under federal and state housing laws as defined by State statute (N.J.S.A. 4A: 12A-1, et.
Seq., the “Housing Authority Act”) for the purpose of engaging in the development, acquisition
and administrative activities of the low-income housing program and other programs with similar
objectives for low and moderate income families residing in the City of Jersey City (the "City").
The Authority is responsible for operating certain low-rent housing programs in the City under
programs administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD").
These programs provide housing for eligible families under the United States Housing Act of
1937, as amended. 

The Authority is governed by a board of commissioners which is essentially autonomous but is
responsible to HUD and the State of New Jersey Department of Community Affairs. An
executive director is appointed by the Authority's Board of Commissioners to manage the day-to-
day operations of the Authority.  

B.  Financial Statement Presentation / Basis of Accounting

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments
through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in accordance with GASB 34, Basic Financial
Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, as
amended ("GASB 34").  GASB 34 requires the basic financial statements to be prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and requires the
presentation of a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows. GASB 34 also requires the Authority to include
Management's Discussion and Analysis as part of the Required Supplemental Information.  

The Authority's primary source of non-exchange revenue relates to grants and subsidies.  In
accordance with GASB 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions
("GASB 33"), grant and subsidy revenue are recognized at the time eligible program
expenditures occur and/or the Authority has complied with the grant and subsidy requirements.

On January 30, 2008, HUD issued PIH Notice 2008-9, which requires that housing assistance
payments ("HAP"), under proprietary fund reporting, should be reported as restricted net position
with the associated cash and investments also being reported as restricted. Any unused
administrative fees should be reported as unrestricted net position, with the associated assets
being reported as unrestricted.

19
CAFR FYE 03/2018 45 AA 10/31/2018

ArlynA
Text Box



JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B.  Financial Statement Presentation / Basis of Accounting (continued)

Both administrative fee and HAP revenues continue to be recognized under the guidelines set
forth in GASB 33. Accordingly, both the time and purpose restrictions, as defined by GASB 33,
are met when these funds are available and measurable, not when these funds are expended. The
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program is no longer a cost reimbursement grant, therefore
the Authority recognizes unspent administrative fee and HAP revenue in the reporting period as
revenue for financial statement reporting.

In accordance with 2 CFR 200.305(b)(9), any investment income earned up to $500 on these
funds may be retained by the Authority.  Amounts in excess of $500 must be remitted annually to
the Department of Health and Human Services, Payment Management System.

The Authority adopted GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions ("GASB
68").  GASB 68 established standards for measuring and recognizing assets, liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenditures associated with pension
plans of State and Local Governments. For defined benefit pensions, GASB 68 identifies the
methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected
benefit payments to their actual present value, and attribute that present value to periods of
employee service. In addition, GASB 68 details the recognition and disclosure requirements for
employers with liabilities to a defined benefit pension plan and for employers whose employees
are provided with defined contribution pensions.

C.  Reporting Entity

In accordance with GASB 61, The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus - An Amendment of
GASB 14 and 32, the Authority’s basic financial statements include those of the Authority and
any component units. Component units are legally separate organizations whose majority of
officials are appointed by the primary government or the organization is fiscally dependent on
the primary government and there is a potential for those organizations either to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.  An
organization has a financial benefit or burden relationship with the primary government if any
one of the following conditions exist:

1. The primary government (Authority) is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the
organization's resources.

2. The primary government is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to
finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization.

3. The primary government is obligated in some manner for the debt of the organization.

Based on the application of the above criteria, this report includes all programs and activities
operated by the Authority.  There were no additional entities required to be included in the
reporting entity under these criteria in the current fiscal year.  Furthermore, the Authority is not
included in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D.  Description of Programs

The Authority maintains its accounting records by program.  A summary of the significant
programs operated by the Authority is as follows:

Public and Indian Housing Program

The Public and Indian Housing program is designed to provide low-cost housing. Under this
program, HUD provides funding via an annual contributions contract. These funds, combined
with the rental income received from tenants, are available solely to meet the operating expenses
of the program.

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

The Authority administers a program of rental assistance payments to private owners on behalf
of eligible low-income families under Section 8 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of
1974.  The program provides payments covering the difference between the maximum rent on a
dwelling unit, as approved by HUD, and the amount of rent contribution by a participating
family. 

Public Housing Capital Fund Program

The purpose of the Capital Fund Program is to provide another source of funding to cover the
cost of physical and management improvements and rehabilitation on existing low-income
housing and improving the central office facilities. Funding for this program is provided by
grants from HUD.

Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services Program

The purpose of the Resident Opportunities and Supportive Services (ROSS) program is to
provide funds for job training and supportive services to help residents of public housing
transition from welfare to work. ROSS also provides funding to link elderly/disabled residents to
critical services which can help them continue to live independently.

Revitalization of Severely Distressed Public Housing ("Hope VI") Program

The purpose of the HOPE VI Program is to foster initiative and comprehensive approaches to the
problems of severely distressed public housing developments and their residents, including new
ways for public housing authorities and HUD to work together, in collaboration with residents.
Funding for this program is provided by HUD.  However, grantees are encouraged to leverage
grant funds with other private or governmental funds to create additional affordable housing.  
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D.  Description of Programs (continued)

Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grants

Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grants support the development of comprehensive
neighborhood transformation plans.  The transformation plan should integrate effective strategies
to implement public and/or assisted housing revitalization, the coordination and design of
supportive services, including educational opportunities for children, and neighborhood-level
planning to improve a range of neighborhood assets.

Continuum of Care Program ("COC")

The COC program is designed to promote communitywide commitment to the goal of ending
homelessness; provide funding for efforts by nonprofit providers, and state and local
governments to quickly rehouse homeless individuals and families while minimizing the trauma
and dislocation caused to homeless individuals, families, and communities by homelessness;
promote access to and effect utilization of mainstream programs by homeless individuals and
families; and optimize self-sufficiency among individuals and families experiencing
homelessness.

Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy ("SRO")

Under the SRO program, HUD enters into annual contribution contracts with PHA's in
connection with the moderate rehabilitation of residential properties.  PHA's make Section 8
rental assistance payments to participating landlords on behalf of homeless individuals who rent
the rehabilitated dwellings.  HUD provides rental assistance for a period up to ten (10) years.
Owners are compensated for the cost of rehabilitation as well as the other costs of maintaining
the property, through rental assistance payments.   

E.  Use of Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates include the
allowance for doubtful accounts, accrued expenses and other liabilities, depreciable lives of
properties and equipment, and contingencies.  Actual results could differ significantly from these
estimates.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

F.  Cash and Cash Equivalents

New Jersey Authorities are required by N.J.S.A. 40A:5-14 to deposit public funds in a bank or
trust company having its place of business in the State of New Jersey and organized under the
laws of the United States or State of New Jersey or the New Jersey Cash Management Fund.
N.J.S.A. 40A:5-15.1 provides a list of securities which may be purchased by New Jersey
Authorities.  The Authority is required to deposit funds in public depositories protected from loss
under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA").  GUDPA
was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed
banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-42 requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories
located in New Jersey, when the funds are secured in accordance with the act.

HUD requires housing authorities to invest excess funds in obligations of the United States,
Certificates of Deposit or any other federally insured investment.

HUD also requires that deposits be fully collateralized at all times. Acceptable collateralization
includes FDIC insurance and the market value of securities purchased and pledged to the
political subdivision. Pursuant to HUD restrictions, obligations of the United States are allowed
as security for deposits. Obligations furnished as security must be held by the Authority or with
an unaffiliated bank or trust company for the account of the Authority.

For the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and highly
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at time of purchase.

It is the Authority's policy to maintain collateralization in accordance with state and HUD
requirements.

G.  Accounts Receivable, Net

Rents are due from tenants on the first day of each month.  As a result, tenants' accounts
receivable balances primarily consist of rents past due and vacated tenants.  Also included in
accounts receivable are those amounts that tenants owe the Authority as payment for committing
fraud or misrepresentation.  These charges usually consist of  retroactive rent and other amounts
that may be determined by a formal written agreement or by a court order. An allowance for
doubtful accounts is established to provide for all accounts, which may not be collected in the
future for any reason.  The Authority recognizes a receivable from HUD and other governmental
agencies for amounts billed but not received and for amounts unbilled, but earned as of year-end.

H.  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Authority periodically reviews all accounts receivable to determine the amount, if any, that
may be uncollectable.  If it is determined that an account or accounts may be uncollectable, the
Authority prepares an analysis of such accounts and records an appropriate allowance against
such amounts.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

I.  Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses represent amounts paid as of year-end that will benefit future operations.

J.  Inventory

Inventories are valued at cost using the First in First out (FIFO) method.  If inventory falls below
cost due to damage, deterioration, or obsolescence, the Authority establishes an allowance for
obsolete inventory.  The Authority uses the consumption method for expense recognition and
relies upon its periodic (annual) inventory for financial reporting purposes.

K.  Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged directly to
expense as they are incurred. Expenditures determined to represent additions or betterments are
capitalized.  Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method based on the estimated
useful lives of the following asset groups:

 Buildings  27.5 - 40 Years

 Building and Land Improvements            15 Years

 Infrastructure            15 Years

 Furniture and Equipment                                         3 - 7 Years

The Authority has established a capitalization threshold of $5,000.

L.  Notes Receivable

The Authority has utilized development funds in accordance with HUD guidelines to assist in the
construction and redevelopment of numerous public housing developments through the issuance
of mortgage notes.  When preparing financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, management is required to make estimates as to the collectability of such
mortgage notes. When estimating collectability, management analyzes the value of the
underlying mortgaged property; the property’s ability to generate positive cash flow and current
economic trends and conditions.  Management utilizes these estimates and judgments in
connection with establishing an allowance for uncollectable amounts during an accounting
period.

M.  Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation
and sick leave computed in accordance with GASB Standards.  A liability for compensated
absences that is attributable to services already rendered and that are not contingent on a specific
event that is outside the control of the Authority and its employees, is accrued as employees earn
the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services or that are
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Authority and its employees are
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take
place.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

N.  Prepaid Tenant Rent

Prepaid tenant rent consist of rent payments made by tenants that apply to future periods.

O.  Operating Revenues and Expenses

The Authority defines its operating revenues as income derived from charges to residents and
others for services provided as well as government subsidies and grants used for operating
purposes.  Operating expenses are costs incurred in the operation of its program activities to
provide services to residents and others.  The Authority classifies all other revenues and
expenses as non-operating.

P.  Taxes

The Authority is a unit of local government under New Jersey law and is exempt from real estate,
sales and income taxes.  

Q.  Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources until that time.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources until that time.  

R.  Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the State of New Jersey, Public Employees Retirement System ("PERS") and
additions to/deductions from PERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

S.  Equity Classifications

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted net position - Consists of resources with constraints placed on the use either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position - All other resources that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or
"net investment in capital assets."

T.  Economic Dependency

The Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers and Low Rent Public Housing Programs of the
Authority are economically dependent on operating grants and subsidies from HUD.  The
programs operate at a loss prior to receiving grants and subsidies. 

U.  Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Authority adopts annual, appropriated operating budgets for all its programs receiving
federal expenditure awards.  All budgets are prepared on a HUD basis, which differs with
GAAP.  All appropriations lapse at HUD's program year end or at the end of grant periods.

The Authority also submits its annual entity-wide operating and capital budget to the State of
New Jersey Department of Consumer Affairs in accordance with New Jersey State Law.

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At March 31, 2018, the Authority had funds on deposit in checking accounts.

All bank deposits as of the net position date are entirely insured or collateralized by a collateral
pool maintained by public depositories as required by New Jersey law.

As of March 31, 2018, the carrying amount of the Authority's cash (including restricted cash)
was $9,656,551 and the bank balances were $9,960,240, respectively.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Of the bank balances, $1,350,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remaining
$8,610,240 was collateralized with the pledging financial institutions as of March 31, 2018.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may
not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. As of
March 31, 2018, the Authority's bank balances were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

NOTE 3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable, net consists of the following at March 31, 2018:

Description Amount

Accounts receivable - HUD $ 2,001,796
Accounts receivable - tenants, net 59,222
Accounts receivable - other government 105,759
Accounts receivable - miscellaneous 142,271

      Total accounts receivable, net $ 2,309,048

Accounts receivable - HUD

Accounts receivable - HUD represents amounts due to the Authority for amounts expended under
grant agreements that have not yet been reimbursed. At March 31, 2018, accounts receivable -
HUD consisted of reimbursable expenses within the following grants:

Program Amount

Public Housing Capital Fund Program $ 1,071,347
Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services 142,698
Mainstream Vouchers 76,661
Continuum of Care 55,202
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 655,888

$ 2,001,796

Accounts receivable - tenants

Accounts receivable - tenants represents amounts due for tenant rents and at March 31, 2018 are
shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $217,690.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET (continued)

Accounts receivable - other government

Accounts receivable - other government consists of amounts that are due from an Affordable
Housing Trust Fund Grant that was awarded by the City. 

Accounts receivable - miscellaneous

Accounts receivable - miscellaneous consists of amounts owed to the Authority from the County
of Hudson and Hope VI fees owed from tax credit properties. 

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

Inventory consists of materials and supplies and fuel which is valued at its lower of cost or
market using the first-in first-out method.

NOTE 5. NOTES RECEIVABLE 

The Authority has utilized Hope VI and other development funds in accordance with HUD
guidelines to assist the construction of numerous public housing developments through the
issuance of mortgage loans.  Outstanding notes receivable as of March 31, 2018 consisted of the
following:

Description Amount

The Authority issued a second mortgage loan receivable from A. Harry
Moore Phase I Associates, LLC in the original amount of $2,961,966.
Interest accrues at 6% annually whereby principal and interest are due in
40 years (2046).  The mortgage is secured by the rental property.  Amounts
owed under the mortgage at March 31, 2018 include $2,139,281 of accrued
interest. $ 5,101,247

The Authority issued 3rd, 4th and 5th mortgage loans to A. Harry Moore
Phase II Associates, L.L.C in the original amount of $4,392,202.   The 3rd
and 4th mortgage loans accrue interest at 6.25% annually.  The 5th
mortgage loan is interest free.  Principal and interest on the mortgages are
due in forty years (2046 - 2048) The mortgages are secured by the rental
property.  Amounts owed under the mortgages at March 31, 2018 include
$2,926,333 of accrued interest. 7,318,535

The Authority has a second mortgage loan receivable from Lafayette
Family Phase III Urban Renewal Associates, L.P. in the original amount of
$6,603,606.  Interest accrues at 4.387% annually whereby amounts are paid
from project cash flow.  Principal and interest are due on December 31,
2049.  The mortgage is secured by the rental property.  Amounts owed
under the mortgage  at March 31, 2018 include $2,839,817 of accrued
interest. 9,443,423
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 5 NOTES RECEIVABLE (continued)

Description Amount

The Authority issued a loan to Lafayette Community Limited Partnership
in the original amount of $10,146,093.  The loan bore interest at an annual
rate of 7% until September 1, 2002 and thereafter bears no interest.  The
loan matures on September 6, 2057 and is secured by the rental property.
Amounts owed under the mortgage  at March 31, 2018 include $138,735 of
accrued interest. 10,284,828

The Authority issued a second mortgage loan receivable from Lafayette
Family Phase II Urban Renewal Associates, L.P. in the original amount of
$5,001,149.  Interest accrues at 4.83% annually whereby amounts are paid
from project cash flow.  Principal and interest are due in April, 2047.  The
mortgage is secured by the rental property.  Amounts owed under the
mortgage at March 31, 2018 include $4,033,509 of accrued interest. 9,034,658

The Authority issued 2nd, 3rd, 4th and 5th mortgage loans to Dwight Street
Urban Renewal Associates, L.P. in the original amount of $4,162,337.  The
2nd and 3rd mortgage loans accrue interest at 4.5% per annum and are due
in February, 2049.  The 4th and 5th mortgage loans are non-interest bearing
and are due in July, 2050.  The mortgages are secured by rental property.
Amounts owed under the mortgages  at March 31, 2018 include $1,638,578
of accrued interest. 5,800,915

The Authority issued 3rd, 4th, 5th and 6th mortgage loans to Lafayette
Senior Living Center, L.P. in the original amount of $1,409,681.  The 4th
and 5th mortgage loans accrue interest at 4.68% annually.  The 3rd and 6th
mortgage loans are interest free.  Principal and interest on the mortgages are
due on May 30, 2048.  The mortgages are secured by the rental property.
Amounts owed under the mortgages  at March 31, 2018 include $231,466 of
accrued interest. 1,641,147

The Authority issued three loans to Lafayette Family Urban Renewal
Associates, L.P. in the original amount of $6,099,341.  The loans accrue
interest at rates of 0%, 1% and 5.02% annually and are payable out of
available cash flow.  The loans matures at various periods between 2047
and 2052 and are secured by the rental property.  Amounts owed under the
mortgages at March 31, 2018 include $4,270,429 of accrued interest. 10,369,770

The Authority has a mortgage loan receivable in the amount of $3,500,000
from AHM Housing Urban Renewal Associates, LLC.  Interest accrued at
5.715% through completion of the project and is interest free subsequent to
the completion date.  Principal and interest are due on October 28, 2060.
The mortgage is secured by the underlying property. 3,424,756
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 5 NOTES RECEIVABLE (continued)

Description Amount

The Authority made a $400,000 HOME loan to AHM Housing Urban
Renewal Associates LLC.  The loan bears no interest and payments are only
due from available cash flow.  The outstanding loan matures on October 28,
2060. 400,000

HOPE VI mortgage loan receivable from Glennview Townhouses Urban
Renewal Associates, LP. in the original amount of $5,000,000 with a
current balance of $4,953,333.  Interest accrues at 4.5% and the loan
matures January 1, 2051. Amounts owed under the mortgage at March 31,
2018 include $1,773,964 of accrued interest. 6,727,297

Mortgage loan receivable from Glennview Townhouses II Urban Renewal
Associates, LP in the original amount of $1,541,099.  The loan bears
interest at 1%, compounded annually and matures December 1, 2064.
Amounts owed under the mortgage at March 31, 2018 include $28,359 of
accrued interest.   1,585,265

The Authority has two mortgage loans receivable from Montgomery Senior
Living Center Urban Renewal Associates, LP in the original amounts of
$400,000 and $176,350, respectively.  Interest accrues at 1% per annum and
the loans mature on October 1, 2064.  Amounts owed under the mortgage at
March 31, 2018 include $19,922 of accrued interest. 1,702,497

The Authority has two mortgage loans receivable from AHM Housing
Urban Renewal Associates IV, LLC in the original amounts of $33,986 and
$325,000, respectively.  Interest accrues at 1% per annum and the loans
mature on December 1, 2064.  Amounts owed under the mortgage at March
31, 2018 include $3,597 of accrued interest. 366,208

The Authority has committed a mortgage loan from the Jersey City
Affordable Housing Trust Fund to Montgomery - Phase I construction in the
amount of $2,000,000 with no interest accrued. 1,800,000

Total notes receivable $ 75,000,546

The current portion on notes receivable is expected to be $-0-.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 6. RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash consists of the following at March 31, 2018:

Cash Category Amount

State Leveraging Fund $ 8,518
Tenant security deposits 432,263
Family Self Sufficiency ("FSS") Program escrows 269,502
Bergen Avenue project reserves 519,457
Arlington Gardens project reserves 305,541

$ 1,535,281

State leveraging funds are held in trust at Wells Fargo Bank as a reserve for debt service .

Tenant security deposits represent amounts held by the Authority on behalf of tenants
participating in the Public and Indian Housing Program.  

FSS program escrows are restricted for use by FSS program participants within the  Housing
Choice Voucher Program.

Bergen Avenue project reserves are controlled by the New Jersey Housing Mortgage Finance
Agency for certain capital and other project expenditures within 254 Bergen Avenue.

Arlington Gardens project reserves are held in a separate bank account for certain capital and
other project expenditures.

NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

A summary of the changes in capital assets during the year ended March 31, 2018 was as
follows:

Balances at 
March 31, 2017 Additions Dispositions Transfers

Balances at
March 31, 2018

Non-depreciable capital assets:
    Land $ 4,756,550 $ 299,647 $ - $ - $ 5,056,197
   Construction in progress 16,322,583 912,262 - (9,377,248) 7,857,597
        Total 21,079,133 1,211,909 - (9,377,248) 12,913,794

Depreciable capital assets:
   Buildings 189,697,834 804,842 - 9,377,248 199,879,924
   Dwelling equipment 977,036 1,364,731 (368,861) - 1,972,906
        Total 190,674,870 2,169,573 (368,861) 9,377,248 201,852,830

Total capital assets 211,754,003 3,381,482 (368,861) - 214,766,624

Less accumulated depreciation for:
   Buildings (131,281,027) (5,976,662) - - (137,257,689)
   Dwelling equipment (886,182) (196,046) 150,458 - (931,770)
Total accumulated depreciation (132,167,209) (6,172,708) 150,458 - (138,189,459)

Net capital assets $ 79,586,794 $ (2,791,226) $ (218,403) $ - $ 76,577,165

Depreciation expense for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018 amounted to $6,172,708.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

As of March 31, 2018, the Authority has a total accounts payable balance of $1,342,111, which
consisted of the following:

Description Amount

Accounts payable - operations $ 1,328,934
Accounts payable - HUD 13,177

$ 1,342,111

NOTE 9. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

BONDS AND LOANS

Description Amount

During 2007, the Authority entered into a Capital Fund leveraging pool.
The New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency ("NJHMFA")
issued tax exempt, twenty year Capital Fund Program Revenue Bonds
totaling $18,585,000.   The Authority's share of funds from the bond issue
pool amounted to $10,000,000.    Interest accrues at rates between 4% and
5% and is payable semi-annually on May 1st and November 1st.
Repayment of the funds is paid solely from Capital Fund allocations
received by the Authority from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development.  The bonds are secured by future capital fund grant
allocations and mature in November, 2027. $ 6,235,000

Mortgage loan payable to NJHMFA in connection with the development of
254 Bergen Ave.  The loan with the original amount of $1,077,250 carries
an annual interest rate of 7.75%, requires monthly principal and interest
payments of $7,787, matures in September, 2022 and is secured by a first
mortgage on the rental property.  343,388

Mortgage loan payable to the Department of Community Affairs of the
State of New Jersey as part of the Balanced Housing Program in the original
amount of $1,073,315.  The loan is interest free, matures in September,
2022 and is secured by a second mortgage on the property at 254 Bergen
Avenue. 

1,073,315

Mortgage loan payable to the Department of Community Affairs of the
State of New Jersey from the Petroleum Overcharge Reimbursement Fund
in the original amount of $283,860.  The loan is interest free, matures in
September, 2022 and is secured by a third mortgage on the property at 254
Bergen Avenue. 283,860
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 9. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued)

BONDS AND LOANS (continued)

Description Amount

Loan payable to the Community Preservation Corporation dated December
29, 2005 in the original amount of $1,750,000 for the acquisition of the
Arlington Gardens property.  Principal and interest payments are due
monthly in the amount of $8,607 including interest at 2.836%.  The loan
matures in March, 2036 and is secured by the property located at 301-305
Randolph Ave. 1,336,876

The Authority has an agreement with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development for the repayment of $8,230,428 in phase-
down funding overpayments.  The Authority is responsible to repay the
amount over 30 years in equal annual installments of $275,000.  The
repayment agreement is interest free and matures in 2047. 8,230,428

Total bonds and loans payable 17,502,867

Less: current portion 916,764

Bonds and loans payable, excluding current portion $ 16,586,103

CAPITAL LEASE   

                                   Description Amount

The Authority entered into a lease purchase agreement on November 23,
2010 for energy savings equipment expiring in November, 2025.  The assets
recorded under the capital lease totaled $8,500,000, and are included in
capital assets on the Statement of Net Position.  Under terms of the capital
lease, monthly payments of $58,831 including interest at 2.2397% are due
through November, 2025.  The assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term or the estimated useful life.  $ 4,807,710

Less: current portion 600,819

Capital lease, excluding current portion $ 4,206,891
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 9. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Annual debt service for principal and interest over the next five years and in five-year increments
thereafter is as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total

2019 $ 1,517,583 $ 480,403 $ 1,997,986
2020 1,827,528 434,437 2,261,965
2021 1,874,159 386,431 2,260,590
2022 1,926,621 336,219 2,262,840
2023 1,933,237 287,076 2,220,313

2024-2028 7,067,324 682,160 7,749,484
2029-2033 1,794,651 96,782 1,891,433
2034-2038 1,659,581 16,671 1,676,252
2039-2043 1,375,000 - 1,375,000
2044-2048 1,334,893 - 1,334,893

$ 22,310,577 $ 2,720,179 $ 25,030,756

OTHER LIABILITIES

Description Amount

FSS Escrows $ 269,502
Utility accruals 329,300
Other miscellaneous liabilities 126,670

Total 725,472

Due within one year 455,970

Non-current portion $ 269,502
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 9. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Long-term debt activity for the year ended March 31,2018 consisted of the following:

Description
March 31,

2017 Increases Decreases
March 31,

2018
Amounts due

within one year

Bonds and loans $ 18,080,828 $ - $ (577,961) $ 17,502,867 $ 916,764
Capital lease 5,647,618 - (839,908) 4,807,710 600,819
Compensated absences 1,811,986 1,347,141 (721,608) 2,437,519 243,753
Net pension liability 35,829,504 - (5,891,460) 29,938,044 -
Other liabilities 998,922 - (273,450) 725,472 455,970

$ 62,368,858 $ 1,347,141 $ (8,304,387) $ 55,411,612 $ 2,217,306

NOTE 10. PENSION PLAN

A.  Plan Description

The State of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement System ("PERS") is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey,
Division of Pensions and Benefits (the "Division").  For additional information about PERS,
please refer to the Division's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR"), which can be
found at www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/financial-reports.shtml.

B.  Benefits

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death
and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits,
which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS.  The following
represents the membership tiers for PERS:

1.  Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007
2.  Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008  
3.  Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4.  Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
5.  Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is
available to tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age
62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60th of final average salary for each year of service credit is
available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65.  

Early retirement benefits are available to tiers 1 and 2 before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4
before age 62 with 25 years or more of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 with 30 years or
more of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each
month a member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement
benefits in accordance with their respective tier.  Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced
benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is
available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the
service retirement age for the respective tier.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 10. PENSION PLAN (continued)

C.  Contributions

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 15A and requires contributions by active
members and contributing employers. State legislation has modified the amount that is
contributed by the State. The State’s pension contribution is based on an actuarially determined
amount, which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and an amortization of the
unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory group insurance benefits is based on
actual claims paid.

The local employers’ contribution amounts are based on the actuarially determined rate, which
includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 provided an
option for local employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability
contribution amounts certified for payments due in State fiscal year 2009. Such employers will
be credited with full payment and any such amounts will not be included in their unfunded
liability. The actuaries will determine the unfunded liability of those retirement systems, by
employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability contributions provided under this law.
This unfunded liability will be paid by the employer in level annual payments over a period of 15
years beginning with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and will be
adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of the assets.

D.  Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
      Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At March 31, 2018, the Authority reported a liability of $29,938,044 for its proportionate share
of the net pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of July 1, 2016, and rolled
forward to June 30, 2017.

For the year ended March 31, 2018, the Authority recognized pension expense of $1,639,846. At
March 31, 2018, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources from the following sources.

Deferred
Outflows 

of Resources

Deferred 
Inflows 

of Resources

Changes of Assumptions $ 6,031,484 $ 6,009,371

Changes in Proportion 1,360,478 2,323,287

Differences between expected and actual experience 704,938 -

Net differences between actual and projected    
    earnings on pension plan investments 203,858 -

Total $ 8,300,758 $ 8,332,658
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 10. PENSION PLAN (continued)

D.  Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
      Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

     Year ending March 31: Amount

2019 $ (24,151)
2020 (36,444)
2021 (22,083)
2022 29,371
2023 21,407

$ (31,900)

E.  Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017.  This
actuarial valuation used the following assumptions:

Inflation Rate 2.25%

Salary increases:
  Through 2026 1.65 - 4.15%, based on age

Thereafter 2.65 - 5.15%, based on age

Investment rate of return 7.00%

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Preretirement Mortality
Table for male and female active participants. For State employees, mortality tables are set back
4 years for males and females. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for
males and 7 years for females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in
mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's
modified MP-2014 projection scale. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000
Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (set back 1 year for males and females) for
service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and one-year static projection based on
mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries
of former members provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013
using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale.
Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disabled
Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward 1 year for females).
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 10. PENSION PLAN (continued)

F.  Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on plan investments is determined by the State Treasurer,
after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and the Division of Pensions
and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return
for each major asset class included in PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are
summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
Target

Allocation

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Absolute return/risk mitigation 5.00% 5.51%
Cash equivalents 5.50% 1.00%
U.S. Treasuries 3.00% 1.87%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 3.78%
Public high yield 2.50% 6.82%
Global diversified credit 5.00% 7.10%
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6.60%
Debt related private equity 2.00% 10.63%
Debt related real estate 1.00% 6.61%
Private real asset 2.50% 11.83%
Equity related real estate 6.25% 9.23%
U.S. equity 30.00% 8.19%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11.50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.64%
Buyouts/venture capital 8.25% 13.08%

G.  Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.00% as of June 30, 2017. This
single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.00% and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 2017 based on the Bond
Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from the plan members will be made at
the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based
on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State employer contributed 40% of the
actuarially determined contributions and the local employers contributed 100% of their
actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan
members through 2040. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was
applied to projected benefit payments through 2040 and the municipal bond rate was applied to
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 10. PENSION PLAN (continued)

H.  Sensitivity of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to
      Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 5.00 percent, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point
lower (4.00 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (6.00 percent) than the current rate.

1% Decrease 
(4.00%)

Discount Rate 
(5.00%)

1% Increase 
(6.00%)

Authority's proportionate share of 
    the net pension liability $ 37,140,175 $ 29,938,044 $ 23,937,775

NOTE 11. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Authority participates in the New Jersey State Health Benefits Program ("the SHBP"), which
qualifies as a cost-sharing, multiple-employer  plan in accordance with GASB 45 Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The
SHBP is administered by the State of New Jersey, Department of Treasury, Division of Pension
and Benefits.

Under the SHBP, retirees may continue the health benefits programs in which they are enrolled
at the time of retirement, provided the retiree pays the costs of the benefits (at group rates) for
themselves and their eligible dependents.

A retiree may also receive Authority-paid health benefits in accordance with labor agreements if
they have twenty-five (25) or more years enrolled in the pension system.

Contribution Requirements – SHBP

Contributions to pay for the health premiums of participating employees in the SHBP – Local are
collected from the State of New Jersey, participating local employers, active members, and
retired members.  Local employer payments and active and retired member contributions are
generally received on a monthly basis.

Local group employees are not affected by the premium sharing provisions of Chapter 8, P.L.
1996. Chapter 2, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, requires a minimum contribution of 1.5% of
base salary toward the cost of health care benefits coverage by all active public employees.
Employees of the State, local governments, and boards of education who become a member of a
State or locally-administered retirement system on or after the law’s effective date would be
required to pay in retirement 1.5% of their pension benefit toward the cost of health care
coverage under the SHBP.

39
CAFR FYE 03/2018 65 AA 10/31/2018

ArlynA
Text Box



JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 11. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Contribution Requirements – SHBP (continued)

Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective June 28, 2011, established new employee contribution
requirements towards the cost of employer provided health benefit coverage.  Employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage.  The rate of contribution is
determined based on the employee’s annual salary and the selected level of coverage.  The
increased employee contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period for those employed prior
to Chapter 78’s effective date with a minimum contribution required to be at least 1.5% of salary.
For those employed on or after June 28, 2011, the 4-year phase-in does not apply and
contributions based on the full percentage rate of contribution are required.  Under Chapter 78,
certain future retirees eligible for employer-paid health care coverage at retirement will also be
required to pay a percentage of the cost of their medical coverage determined on the basis of
their annual retirement benefit.  
  
The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues
publicly available financial reports that include the financial statements and required
supplementary information of the SHBP. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the
State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box
295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295.

The SHBP is established under the authority of N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.25 et seq. and regulations
adopted by the State Health Benefits Commission.  The required contribution rate is determined
on an annual pay as you go basis. The following were the required contributions to the SHBP:

Year Amount

2018 $ 4,628,932
2017 $ 4,577,899
2016 $ 4,341,583

NOTE 12. RESTRICTED NET POSITION

At March 31, 2018, restricted net position consisted of the following:

Description Amount

State Debt Leveraging Fund $ 8,518
HOPE VI notes receivable and related accrued interest 75,000,546
Bergen Avenue project reserves 519,457
Arlington Gardens project reserves 305,541

$ 75,834,062
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 12. RESTRICTED NET POSITION (continued)

State debt leveraging funds represent amount held in escrow in accordance with the New Jersey
Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency Revenue Bond Capital Fund Program 2007 Series A
bond indenture.

Hope VI loan reserves and the related accrued interest are restricted for public housing
development upon collection of the loan and related accrued interest.

Bergen Avenue project reserves are restricted by the New Jersey Housing Mortgage Finance
Agency for certain capital and other project expenditures within 254 Bergen Avenue.

Arlington Gardens project reserves are held in a separate bank account and restricted for certain
capital and other project expenditures.

NOTE 13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters.  The Authority maintains insurance policies
acquired from independent insurance covering all structural property, automobiles, crime
coverage, personal property and general liability.  Settlement amounts have not exceeded
insurance coverage for the last three years.

NOTE 14. CONTINGENCIES

The Authority receives financial assistance from HUD in the form of grants and subsidies.
Entitlement to the funds is generally conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of
the grant agreements and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for
eligible purposes.  Substantially all grants, entitlements and cost reimbursements are subject to
financial and compliance audits by HUD.  As a result of these audits, costs previously
reimbursed could be disallowed and require payments to HUD.  As of March 31, 2018, the
Authority estimates that no material liabilities will result from such audits.

NOTE 15. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The Authority's financial statements have been restated due to the correction of an error related
to a note receivable that was incorrectly expensed in the prior years.  As a result of the error,
unrestricted net position and notes receivable have been increased by $2,313,981 as of April 1,
2017. 
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that occur after the financial statement date but before the financial statements were
available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent
events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the financial statement date are
recognized in the accompanying financial statements.  Subsequent events which provide
evidence about conditions that existed after the financial statement date require disclosure in the
accompanying notes to the financial statements.  Management evaluated the activity of the
Authority through September 14, 2018 (the date the financial statements were available to be
issued) and concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in
the financial statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
REQUIRED PENSION INFORMATION

MARCH 31, 2018

SCHEDULE OF AUTHORITY CONTRIBUTIONS FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS***

March 31, 
2014

March 31, 
2015

March 31,
2016

March 31,
2017

March 31,
2018

Contractually required contribution $ 1,170,858 $ 1,103,948 $ 1,123,862 $ 1,028,449 $ 1,191,422

Contributions in relation to the contractually
    required contribution 1,170,858 1,103,948 1,123,862 1,028,449 1,191,422

(Over) / under funded $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Authority's covered-employee payroll $ 9,483,747 $ 8,805,692 $ 9,411,623 $ 9,856,186 $ 10,316,181

Contributions as a percentage of 
     covered-employee payroll %12.35 %12.54 %11.94 %10.43 %11.55

SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS***

March 31, 
2014

March 31, 
2015

March 31,
2016

March 31,
2017

March 31,
2018

Authority's proportion of the net pension liability %0.1465 %0.1363 %0.1260 %0.1210 %0.1286

Authority's proportionate share of the 
   net pension liability $ 28,001,608 $ 25,521,097 $ 28,291,027 $ 35,829,504 $ 29,938,044

Authority's covered-employee payroll $ 9,483,747 $ 8,805,692 $ 9,411,623 $ 9,856,186 $ 10,316,181

Authority's proportionate share of the net pension
   liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered-
   employee payroll %295.26 %289.83 %300.60 %363.52 %290.20

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
   total pension liability %48.72 %52.08 %47.93 %40.14 %48.10

*** = Until a full 10 year trend is compiled the Authority is presenting information for those years that are available.

See Report of Independent Auditors.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED  MARCH 31, 2018

Federal
Grantor/Program Title

Federal
CFDA

Number

State
Pass-

through
Number

Grant Period
     From        /      To      

Grant 
Award

Fiscal Year
Expenditures

Cumulative -
Expenditures

Public and Indian Housing 14.850 N/A 4/1/17 3/31/18 $ 10,663,638 $ 10,663,638 $ 10,663,638

 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 N/A 4/1/17 3/31/18 44,650,058 45,332,109 45,332,109

 Section 8 Mod Rehab SRO 14.249 N/A 4/1/17 3/31/18 889,492 857,293 870,470

 Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 N/A 4/1/15 3/31/19 26,455,441 5,941,176 24,201,049

Capital Fund Education and Training Fac. 14.890 N/A 4/1/15 3/31/19 998,640 896,704 998,640

Mainstream Vouchers 14.879 N/A 4/1/15 3/31/19 1,877,008 1,877,008 1,877,008

Continuum of Care 14.267 N/A 4/1/15 3/31/16 486,723 410,871 410,871

Revitalization of Severely Distressed 
      Public Housing 14.866 N/A 9/15/10 9/30/15 34,140,000 199,882 34,140,000

Resident Opportunity and Support Services 14.870 N/A 09/02/15 09/02/18 455,326 154,063 397,698

Total $ 120,616,326 $ 66,332,744 $ 118,891,483

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) includes the
federal grant activity of the Authority under programs of the federal government for the year ended
March 31, 2018.  The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the
Authority. 

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  

NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE

The Authority has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 4. STATEMENT AND CERTIFICATION OF ACTUAL CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM 
COSTS AND ADVANCES - CLOSED GRANTS

501-12 501-13 R502-09 R501-11 R502-12 R502-13 Total

Budget $ 3,872,643 $ 3,728,805 $ 705,334 $ 115,752 $ 98,663 $ 307,959 $ 8,829,156

Advances:
Cumulative through 3/31/17 $ 3,872,643 $ 3,728,805 $ 705,334 $ 115,752 $ 98,663 $ 307,959 $ 8,829,156

 Current Year - - - - - - -
Cumulative through 3/31/18 3,872,643 3,728,805 705,334 115,752 98,663 307,959 8,829,156

Costs:
Cumulative through 3/31/17 3,872,643 3,728,805 705,334 115,752 98,663 307,959 8,829,156

 Current Year - - - - - - -
Cumulative through 3/31/18 3,872,643 3,728,805 705,334 115,752 98,663 307,959 8,829,156

Excess / (Deficiency) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

NOTES TO SCHEDULE  OF CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM COSTS AND ADVANCES

1) The total amount of Capital Fund Program Costs and Advances for closed grants incurred and earned by the Jersey City Housing
Authority as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 are provided herein.

2) The Capital Fund grants listed  have been fully drawn down and expended as per Capital Fund grant regulations. 
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

I. Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

1. Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified

2. Internal control over financial reporting

a. Material weakness(es) identified? No

b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? No

3. Noncompliance material to the financial statements? No

Federal Awards

1. Internal Control over compliance:

a. Material weakness(es) identified? No

b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? No

2. Type of auditors' report on compliance 
for major programs: Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No

4. Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program

14.850 Public and Indian Housing
14.872 Public Housing Capital Fund
14.890 Public Housing Capital Fund Education and Training

5. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
 Type A and Type B Programs: $1,989,982

6. Auditee qualified as low-risk Auditee? Yes
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JERSEY CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

II. Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards.

III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

IV. Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

There were no findings or questioned costs in the prior year.
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Housing Authority of the City of Jersey City
NJ009
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Account Description PROJECTS
HOUSING CHOICE 

VOUCHERS

14.890 CAPITAL 
FUND EDUCATION 

AND TRAINING 
COMMUNTITIES 

SECTION 8 
MODERATE REHAB 
SINGLE ROOM OCC

MAINSTREAM 
VOUCHERS

14.866 
REVITALIZATION OF 

SEVERLY 
DISTRESSED PUBLIC 

HOUSING SHELTER PLUS CARE
Line Item #

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash:
111 Cash - unrestricted 3,887,962$               2,471,990$               -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          
112 Cash - restricted - modernization and development 8,518                        -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
113 Cash - other restricted -                            269,502                    -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
114 Cash - tenant security deposits 362,133                    -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
115 Cash - restricted for payment of current liabilities -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
100 Total cash 4,258,613                 2,741,492                 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Accounts and notes receivables:
121 Accounts receivable - PHA projects -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
122 Accounts receivable - HUD other projects 1,071,347                 655,888                    -                            76,661                      -                            -                            
124 Accounts receivable - other government 1,677                        -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
125 Accounts receivable - miscellaneous 95,852                      3,205                        -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
126 Accounts receivable- tenants 260,124                    -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants (207,110)                   -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
126.2 Allowance for doubtful accounts - other -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

127 Notes and mortgages receivable- current -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
128 Fraud recovery -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

128.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - fraud -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
129 Accrued interest receivable -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
120 Total receivables, net of allowances for doubtful accounts 1,220,213                 660,770                    -                            -                            76,661                      -                            -                            

Current investments
131 Investments - unrestricted -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
132 Investments - restricted -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
135 Investments - restricted for payment of current liability -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets 703,508                    227                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
143 Inventories 689,431                    -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

143.1 Allowance for obsolete inventories -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
144 Interprogram - due from 4,476,745                 475,360                    -                            211,570                    -                            -                            -                            
145 Assets held for sale -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
150 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 11,348,510               3,877,849                 -                            211,570                    76,661                      -                            -                            

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Fixed assets:

161 Land 2,687,161                 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
162 Buildings 178,372,551             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
163 Furniture, equipment & machinery - dwellings 112,774                    -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
164 Furniture, equipment & machinery - administration 963,010                    149,912                    -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
165 Leasehold improvements -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
166 Accumulated depreciation (121,601,768)            (116,520)                   -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
167 Construction in Progress 6,926,456                 -                            818,059                    -                            -                            -                            -                            
168 Infrastructure -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
160 Total fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation 67,460,184               33,392                      818,059                    -                            -                            -                            -                            

Other non-current assets:
171 Notes and mortgages receivable - non-current 73,200,546               -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
172 Notes and mortgages receivable-non-current - past due -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
174 Other assets -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
175 Undistributed debits -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
176 Investment in joint ventures -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

-                            -                            -                            
180 TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 140,660,730             33,392                      818,059                    -                            -                            -                            -                            

200 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS RESOURCES 3,533,448                 1,192,525                 -                            -                            -                            

290 TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 155,542,688$           5,103,766$               818,059$                  211,570$                  76,661$                    -$                          -$                          

March 31, 2018
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Housing Authority of the City of Jersey City
NJ009
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Account Description PROJECTS
HOUSING CHOICE 

VOUCHERS

14.890 CAPITAL 
FUND EDUCATION 

AND TRAINING 
COMMUNTITIES 

SECTION 8 
MODERATE REHAB 
SINGLE ROOM OCC

MAINSTREAM 
VOUCHERS

14.866 
REVITALIZATION OF 

SEVERLY 
DISTRESSED PUBLIC 

HOUSING SHELTER PLUS CARE
Line Item #

March 31, 2018

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY:
Liabilities:

Current Liabilities:
311 Bank overdraft -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          
312 Accounts payable < 90 days 982,293                    84,413                      -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
313 Accounts payable > 90 days past due -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable 191,628                    52,054                      -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
322 Accrued compensated absences - current portion 107,234                    24,301                      -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
324 Accrued contingency liability -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
325 Accrued interest payable 131,325                    -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
331 Accounts payable - HUD PHA programs -                            -                            -                            13,177                      -                            -                            -                            
332 Accounts payable - PHA projects -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
333 Accounts payable - other government -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
341 Tenant security deposits 362,133                    -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
342 Unearned Revenue 171,476                    -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
343 Current portion of L-T debt - capital projects 1,122,825                 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
344 Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings 275,001                    -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
345 Other current liabilities 102,519                    9,520                        -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
346 Accrued liabilities - other -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
347 Interprogram - due to 763,523                    -                            -                            -                            41,038                      -                            -                            
310 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,209,957                 170,288                    -                            13,177                      41,038                      -                            -                            

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

351 Long-term debt, net of current - capital projects 10,194,885               -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings 7,680,427                 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
353 Non-current liabilities- other -                            269,502                    -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
354 Accrued compensated absences - noncurrent 965,114                    218,705                    -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
355 Loan Liability - Non Current -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
356 FASB 5 Liabilities -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
357 Accrued pension and OPEB liabilities 12,743,958               4,301,038                 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
350 TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 31,584,384               4,789,245                 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

300 TOTAL LIABILITIES 35,794,341               4,959,533                 -                            13,177                      41,038                      -                            -                            

400 DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 3,547,027                 1,197,108                 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

EQUITY:
508.1 Net Investment in Capital Assets 56,142,474               33,392                      818,059                    -                            -                            -                            -                            
511.1 Restricted Net Position 73,209,064               -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
512.1 Unrestricted Net Position (13,150,218)              (1,086,267)                -                            198,393                    35,623                      -                            -                            

513 TOTAL EQUITY 116,201,320             (1,052,875)                818,059                    198,393                    35,623                      -                            -                            

600 TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND EQUITY 155,542,688$           5,103,766$               818,059$                  211,570$                  76,661$                    -$                          -$                          
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Housing Authority of the City of Jersey City
NJ009
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Account Description
Line Item #

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash:
111 Cash - unrestricted
112 Cash - restricted - modernization and development
113 Cash - other restricted
114 Cash - tenant security deposits
115 Cash - restricted for payment of current liabilities
100 Total cash

Accounts and notes receivables:
121 Accounts receivable - PHA projects
122 Accounts receivable - HUD other projects
124 Accounts receivable - other government
125 Accounts receivable - miscellaneous
126 Accounts receivable- tenants

126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants
126.2 Allowance for doubtful accounts - other

127 Notes and mortgages receivable- current
128 Fraud recovery 

128.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - fraud 
129 Accrued interest receivable
120 Total receivables, net of allowances for doubtful accounts

Current investments
131 Investments - unrestricted
132 Investments - restricted
135 Investments - restricted for payment of current liability
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets
143 Inventories

143.1 Allowance for obsolete inventories
144 Interprogram - due from
145 Assets held for sale
150 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Fixed assets:

161 Land
162 Buildings
163 Furniture, equipment & machinery - dwellings
164 Furniture, equipment & machinery - administration
165 Leasehold improvements
166 Accumulated depreciation
167 Construction in Progress
168 Infrastructure
160 Total fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Other non-current assets:
171 Notes and mortgages receivable - non-current
172 Notes and mortgages receivable-non-current - past due
174 Other assets
175 Undistributed debits
176 Investment in joint ventures

180 TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

200 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS RESOURCES

290 TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

March 31, 2018

STATE/LOCAL

14.870 RESIDENT 
OPPORTUNITY AND 

SUPPORTIVE 
SERVICES

14.267 CONTINIUM 
OF CARE PROGRAM COCC ELIMINATION TOTAL

440,571$                  -$                          -$                          1,320,747$               -$                          8,121,270$               
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            8,518                        

824,998                    -                            -                            -                            -                            1,094,500                 
70,130                      -                            -                            -                            -                            432,263                    

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
1,335,699                 -                            -                            1,320,747                 -                            9,656,551                 

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            142,698                    55,202                      -                            -                            2,001,796                 

104,082                    -                            -                            -                            -                            105,759                    
42,528                      -                            -                            686                            -                            142,271                    
16,788                      -                            -                            -                            -                            276,912                    

(10,580)                     -                            -                            -                            -                            (217,690)                   
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

152,818                    142,698                    55,202                      686                            -                            2,309,048                 

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

54,824                      -                            -                            125,552                    -                            884,111                    
78,948                      -                            -                            -                            -                            768,379                    

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            (5,163,675)                -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

1,622,289                 142,698                    55,202                      1,446,985                 (5,163,675)                13,618,089               

1,472,667                 -                            -                            896,369                    -                            5,056,197                 
7,836,323                 -                            -                            13,671,050               -                            199,879,924             

13,206                      -                            -                            -                            -                            125,980                    
5,751                        -                            -                            728,253                    -                            1,846,926                 

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
(5,242,872)                -                            -                            (11,228,299)              -                            (138,189,459)            

113,082                    -                            -                            -                            -                            7,857,597                 
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

4,198,157                 -                            -                            4,067,373                 -                            76,577,165               

1,800,000                 -                            -                            -                            -                            75,000,546               
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

5,998,157                 -                            -                            4,067,373                 -                            151,577,711             

319,272                    -                            -                            3,255,513                 -                            8,300,758                 

7,939,718$               142,698$                  55,202$                    8,769,871$               (5,163,675)$              173,496,558$           
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Housing Authority of the City of Jersey City
NJ009
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Account Description
Line Item #

March 31, 2018

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY:
Liabilities:

Current Liabilities:
311 Bank overdraft
312 Accounts payable < 90 days
313 Accounts payable > 90 days past due
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable
322 Accrued compensated absences - current portion
324 Accrued contingency liability
325 Accrued interest payable
331 Accounts payable - HUD PHA programs
332 Accounts payable - PHA projects
333 Accounts payable - other government
341 Tenant security deposits
342 Unearned Revenue
343 Current portion of L-T debt - capital projects
344 Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings
345 Other current liabilities
346 Accrued liabilities - other
347 Interprogram - due to
310 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

351 Long-term debt, net of current - capital projects
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings
353 Non-current liabilities- other
354 Accrued compensated absences - noncurrent
355 Loan Liability - Non Current
356 FASB 5 Liabilities
357 Accrued pension and OPEB liabilities
350 TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

300 TOTAL LIABILITIES

400 DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

EQUITY:
508.1 Net Investment in Capital Assets
511.1 Restricted Net Position
512.1 Unrestricted Net Position

513 TOTAL EQUITY
600 TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND EQUITY

STATE/LOCAL

14.870 RESIDENT 
OPPORTUNITY AND 

SUPPORTIVE 
SERVICES

14.267 CONTINIUM 
OF CARE PROGRAM COCC ELIMINATION TOTAL

-$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          
18,270                      -                            -                            243,958                    -                            1,328,934                 

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
11,762                      -                            -                            134,101                    -                            389,545                    

9,678                        -                            -                            102,540                    -                            243,753                    
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            131,325                    
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            13,177                      
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

70,130                      -                            -                            -                            -                            432,263                    
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            171,476                    

119,757                    -                            -                            -                            -                            1,242,582                 
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            275,001                    
-                            -                            -                            14,631                      -                            126,670                    

6,079                        -                            -                            323,221                    -                            329,300                    
1,682,624                 142,656                    54,989                      2,478,845                 (5,163,675)                -                            
1,918,300                 142,656                    54,989                      3,297,296                 (5,163,675)                4,684,026                 

2,917,682                 -                            -                            -                            -                            13,112,567               
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            7,680,427                 
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            269,502                    

87,099                      -                            -                            922,858                    -                            2,193,776                 
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

1,151,508                 -                            -                            11,741,540               -                            29,938,044               
4,156,289                 -                            -                            12,664,398               -                            53,194,316               

6,074,589                 142,656                    54,989                      15,961,694               (5,163,675)                57,878,342               

320,499                    -                            -                            3,268,024                 -                            8,332,658                 

1,160,718                 -                            -                            4,067,373                 -                            62,222,016               
2,624,998                 -                            -                            -                            -                            75,834,062               

(2,241,086)                42                              213                            (14,527,220)              -                            (30,770,520)              

1,544,630                 42                              213                            (10,459,847)              -                            107,285,558             

7,939,718$               142,698$                  55,202$                    8,769,871$               (5,163,675)$              173,496,558$           
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Housing Authority of the City of Jersey City
NJ009
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Account Description OPERATING CAPITAL
HOUSING CHOICE 

VOUCHERS

14.890 CAPITAL 
FUND EDUCATION 

AND TRAINING 
COMMUNTITIES 

SECTION 8 
MODERATE REHAB 
SINGLE ROOM OCC

MAINSTREAM 
VOUCHERS

REVITALIZATION 
OF SEVERLY 

DISTRESSED PUBLIC 
HOUSING 

Line Item #
REVENUE:

70300 Net tenant rental revenue 8,650,958$              -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
70400 Tenant revenue - other 215,188                   -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
70500 Total tenant revenue 8,866,146                -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

70600 HUD PHA grants 10,663,638              3,363,219                44,650,058              93,179                     857,293                   1,877,008                199,882                   
70610 Capital grants -                           2,577,957                -                           803,525                   -                           -                           -                           
70710 Management fee -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
70720 Asset management fee -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
70730 Book keeping fee -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
70740 Front line service fee -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
70750 Other fees -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
70800 Other government grants -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
71100 Investment income - unrestricted 5,919                       -                           13,302                     -                           -                           -                           -                           
71200 Mortgage interest income 2,697,027                -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
71300 Proceeds from disposition of asseets held for sale -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
71301 Cost of sale of assets -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
71400 Fraud recovery 17,809                     -                           130,840                   -                           -                           -                           -                           
71500 Other revenue 333,330                   -                           338,838                   -                           -                           421                          -                           
71600 Gain or loss on sale of fixed assets 70,977                     -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
72000 Investment income - restricted -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

70000 TOTAL REVENUE 22,654,846              5,941,176                45,133,038              896,704                   857,293                   1,877,429                199,882                   

EXPENSES:

Administrative

91100 Administrative salaries 1,179,430                -                           1,179,034                -                           -                           -                           -                           
91200 Auditing fees 12,553                     -                           19,627                     -                           2,500                       -                           -                           
91300 Outside management fees 1,269,102                436,659                   641,140                   68,750                     13,800                     27,744                     -                           
91310 Book-keeping fee 136,345                   -                           361,500                   -                           8,625                       17,338                     -                           
91400 Advertising and marketing -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
91500 Employee benefit contributions- administrative 649,667                   -                           845,917                   -                           -                           -                           -                           
91600 Office expenses 58,976                     -                           82,299                     -                           -                           -                           -                           
91700 Legal expenses 137,269                   -                           33,635                     -                           -                           -                           -                           
91800 Travel 609                          -                           4,569                       -                           -                           -                           -                           
91810 Allocated overhead -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
91900 Other 764,813                   130,509                   101,862                   -                           86,963                     109,420                   -                           

Total administrative 4,208,764                567,168                   3,269,583                68,750                     111,888                   154,502                   -                           

92000 Asset Management Fee 146,640                   -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Tenant services

92100 Tenant services - salaries -                           -                           156,877                   -                           -                           -                           -                           
92200 Relocation costs 8,380                       8,500                       -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
92300 Employee benefit contributions- tenant services 27,667                     -                           65,813                     -                           -                           -                           -                           
92400 Tenant services - other 95,715                     -                           210                          -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total tenant services 131,762                   8,500                       222,900                   -                           -                           -                           -                           

Utilities

93100 Water 1,307,865                -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
93200 Electricity 1,096,249                -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
93300 Gas 1,076,159                -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
93400 Fuel 468,618                   -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
93500 Labor -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
93600 Sewer -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
93700 Employee benefit contributions- utilities -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
93800 Other utilities expense 236,875                   -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total utilities 4,185,766                -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

March 31, 2018
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Housing Authority of the City of Jersey City
NJ009
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Account Description OPERATING CAPITAL
HOUSING CHOICE 

VOUCHERS

14.890 CAPITAL 
FUND EDUCATION 

AND TRAINING 
COMMUNTITIES 

SECTION 8 
MODERATE REHAB 
SINGLE ROOM OCC

MAINSTREAM 
VOUCHERS

REVITALIZATION 
OF SEVERLY 

DISTRESSED PUBLIC 
HOUSING 

Line Item #

March 31, 2018

Ordinary maintenance & operation

94100 Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor 3,119,411                -                           141,589                   -                           -                           -                           -                           
94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - materials & other 277,933                   -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
94300 Ordinary maintenance and operations - contract costs 2,537,909                -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
94500 Employee benefit contributions- ordinary maintenance 2,235,212                -                           24,073                     -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total ordinary maintenance 8,170,465                -                           165,662                   -                           -                           -                           -                           

Protective services

95100 Protective services - labor -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
95200 Protective services-  other contract costs 52,630                     -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
95300 Protective services - other -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
95500 Employee benefit contributions- protective services -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total protective services 52,630                     -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

General expenses

96100 Insurance premiums 803,268                   -                           109,499                   -                           -                           -                           
96200 Other general expenses 1,622,530                -                           238,444                   -                           -                           -                           -                           
96210 Compensated absences 343,142                   -                           63,795                     -                           -                           -                           -                           
96300 Payments in lieu of taxes -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
96400 Bad debt - tenant rents 141,857                   -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
96500 Bad debt- mortgages 2,697,027                -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
96600 Bad debt - other -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
96700 Interest expense -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
96710 Interest of mortgage (or bonds) payable 114,519                   299,978                   -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
96720 Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term) -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
96730 Amortization of bond issue costs -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
96800 Severance expense 72,553                     -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total general expenses 5,794,896                299,978                   411,738                   -                           -                           -                           -                           

96900 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 22,690,923              875,646                   4,069,883                68,750                     111,888                   154,502                   -                           
97000 EXCESS OPERATING REVENUE OVER OPERATING 

EXPENSES (36,077)                    5,065,530                41,063,155              827,954                   745,405                   1,722,927                199,882                   

97100 Extraordinary maintenance 1,144                       821,985                   -                           20,419                     -                           -                           199,882                   
97200 Casualty losses - non capitalized -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
97300 Housing assistance payments -                           -                           41,255,771              -                           745,405                   1,722,927                -                           
97350 HAP Portability - in -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
97400 Depreciation expense 5,368,172                -                           10,216                     -                           -                           -                           -                           
97500 Fraud losses -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
97800 Dwelling units rent expense -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

90000 TOTAL EXPENSES 28,060,239              1,697,631                45,335,870              89,169                     857,293                   1,877,429                199,882                   
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Housing Authority of the City of Jersey City
NJ009
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Account Description OPERATING CAPITAL
HOUSING CHOICE 

VOUCHERS

14.890 CAPITAL 
FUND EDUCATION 

AND TRAINING 
COMMUNTITIES 

SECTION 8 
MODERATE REHAB 
SINGLE ROOM OCC

MAINSTREAM 
VOUCHERS

REVITALIZATION 
OF SEVERLY 

DISTRESSED PUBLIC 
HOUSING 

Line Item #

March 31, 2018

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
10010 Operating transfers in 1,054,324                -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
10020 Operating transfers out -                           (1,054,324)               -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
10030 Operating transfers from/to primary government -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
10040 Operating transfers from/to component unit -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
10070 Extraordinary items, net gain/loss -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
10080 Special items (net gain/loss) -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
10091 Inter Project excess cash transfer in 637,959                   -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
10092 Inter Project excess cash transfer out (637,959)                  -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
10093 Transfers between program and project in 1,279,873                -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
10094 Transfers between program and project out -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

10100 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 2,334,197                (1,054,324)               -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

10000 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (3,071,196)$             3,189,221$              (202,832)$                807,535$                 -$                         -$                         -$                         

MEMO ACCOUNT INFORMATION:
11020 Required annual debt principal payments 654,896                   435,001                   -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

11030 Beginning equity 108,200,085            4,691,224                (850,043)                  10,524                     179,371                   35,623                     -                           
11040 Prior period adjustments and equity transfers -                           494,959                   -                           -                           19,022                     -                           -                           

-                           
11170 Administrative fee equity -                           -                           (1,052,875)               -                           -                           -                           -                           
11180 Housing assistance payments equity -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           (1,052,875)               -                           -                           -                           -                           
11190 Unit months available 27,462                     -                           50,700                     -                           1,200                       2,400                       -                           
11210 Number of unit months leased 24,885                     -                           48,200                     -                           1,150                       2,312                       -                           

Equity Roll Forward Test:
Calculation from R/E Statement 113,504,293$          -$                         (1,052,875)$             818,059$                 198,393$                 35,623$                   -$                         
B/S Line 513 116,201,320$          -$                         (1,052,875)$             818,059$                 198,393$                 35,623$                   -$                         

(2,697,027)$             -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
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Housing Authority of the City of Jersey City
NJ009
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Account Description
Line Item #

REVENUE:
70300 Net tenant rental revenue
70400 Tenant revenue - other
70500 Total tenant revenue

70600 HUD PHA grants
70610 Capital grants
70710 Management fee
70720 Asset management fee
70730 Book keeping fee
70740 Front line service fee
70750 Other fees
70800 Other government grants
71100 Investment income - unrestricted
71200 Mortgage interest income
71300 Proceeds from disposition of asseets held for sale
71301 Cost of sale of assets
71400 Fraud recovery
71500 Other revenue
71600 Gain or loss on sale of fixed assets
72000 Investment income - restricted

70000 TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES:

Administrative

91100 Administrative salaries
91200 Auditing fees
91300 Outside management fees
91310 Book-keeping fee
91400 Advertising and marketing
91500 Employee benefit contributions- administrative
91600 Office expenses
91700 Legal expenses
91800 Travel
91810 Allocated overhead
91900 Other

Total administrative

92000 Asset Management Fee

Tenant services

92100 Tenant services - salaries
92200 Relocation costs
92300 Employee benefit contributions- tenant services
92400 Tenant services - other

Total tenant services

Utilities

93100 Water
93200 Electricity
93300 Gas
93400 Fuel
93500 Labor
93600 Sewer
93700 Employee benefit contributions- utilities
93800 Other utilities expense

Total utilities

March 31, 2018

SHELTER PLUS 
CARE STATE/LOCAL

14.870 RESIDENT 
OPPORTUNITY AND 

SUPPORTIVE 
SERVICES

14.267 CONTINIUM 
OF CARE PROGRAM COCC ELIMINATION TOTAL

-$                         1,225,627$              -$                         -$                         -$                         9,876,585                
-                           23,440                     -                           -                           -                           -                           238,628                   
-                           1,249,067                -                           -                           -                           10,115,213              

-                           -                           154,063                   410,871                   -                           -                           62,269,211              
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           3,381,482                
-                           -                           -                           -                           2,457,195                (2,457,195)               -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           146,640                   (146,640)                  -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           523,808                   (523,808)                  -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           2,087,198                (2,087,198)               -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           807,017                   -                           -                           -                           -                           807,017                   
-                           2,657                       -                           -                           14,347                     -                           36,225                     
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           2,697,027                
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           148,649                   
-                           106,345                   -                           -                           1,737,226                -                           2,516,160                
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           70,977                     
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           2,165,086                154,063                   410,871                   6,966,414                (5,214,841)               82,041,961              

-                           102,852                   92,787                     -                           2,530,998                -                           5,085,101                
-                           15,998                     -                           -                           3,002                       -                           53,680                     
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           (2,457,195)               -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           (523,808)                  -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           37,617                     38,349                     -                           1,188,235                -                           2,759,785                
-                           3,194                       2,777                       -                           65,595                     -                           212,841                   
-                           13,132                     -                           -                           66,957                     (154,635)                  96,358                     
-                           105                          3,545                       -                           33,087                     -                           41,915                     
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           31,925                     6,960                       58,004                     193,490                   -                           1,483,946                
-                           204,823                   144,418                   58,004                     4,081,364                (3,135,638)               9,733,626                

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           (146,640)                  -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           156,877                   
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           16,880                     
-                           2,150                       -                           -                           4,177                       -                           99,807                     
-                           -                           172                          -                           -                           -                           96,097                     
-                           2,150                       172                          -                           4,177                       -                           369,661                   

-                           148,891                   -                           -                           -                           -                           1,456,756                
-                           30,286                     4,551                       -                           104,986                   -                           1,236,072                
-                           95,505                     -                           -                           2,097                       -                           1,173,761                
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           468,618                   
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           10,584                     -                           -                           -                           -                           247,459                   
-                           285,266                   4,551                       -                           107,083                   -                           4,582,666                
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Housing Authority of the City of Jersey City
NJ009
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Account Description
Line Item #

March 31, 2018

Ordinary maintenance & operation

94100 Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor
94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - materials & other
94300 Ordinary maintenance and operations - contract costs
94500 Employee benefit contributions- ordinary maintenance

Total ordinary maintenance

Protective services

95100 Protective services - labor
95200 Protective services-  other contract costs
95300 Protective services - other
95500 Employee benefit contributions- protective services

Total protective services

General expenses

96100 Insurance premiums
96200 Other general expenses
96210 Compensated absences
96300 Payments in lieu of taxes
96400 Bad debt - tenant rents
96500 Bad debt- mortgages
96600 Bad debt - other
96700 Interest expense
96710 Interest of mortgage (or bonds) payable
96720 Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term)
96730 Amortization of bond issue costs
96800 Severance expense

Total general expenses

96900 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 
97000 EXCESS OPERATING REVENUE OVER OPERATING 

EXPENSES

97100 Extraordinary maintenance
97200 Casualty losses - non capitalized
97300 Housing assistance payments
97350 HAP Portability - in
97400 Depreciation expense
97500 Fraud losses
97800 Dwelling units rent expense

90000 TOTAL EXPENSES

SHELTER PLUS 
CARE STATE/LOCAL

14.870 RESIDENT 
OPPORTUNITY AND 

SUPPORTIVE 
SERVICES

14.267 CONTINIUM 
OF CARE PROGRAM COCC ELIMINATION TOTAL

-                           293,923                   -                           -                           1,471,038                -                           5,025,961                
-                           66,880                     -                           -                           41,357                     -                           386,170                   
-                           187,607                   -                           -                           34,352                     (1,932,563)               827,305                   
-                           203,131                   -                           -                           1,642,856                -                           4,105,272                
-                           751,541                   -                           -                           3,189,603                (1,932,563)               10,344,708              

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           52,630                     
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           52,630                     

-                           45,477                     4,938                       -                           173,510                   -                           1,136,692                
-                           64,715                     -                           -                           -                           -                           1,925,689                
-                           60,941                     -                           -                           157,665                   -                           625,543                   
-                           18,590                     -                           -                           -                           -                           18,590                     
-                           7,573                       -                           -                           -                           -                           149,430                   
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           2,697,027                
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           86,278                     -                           -                           -                           -                           500,775                   
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           19,817                     -                           -                           -                           -                           92,370                     
-                           303,391                   4,938                       -                           331,175                   -                           7,146,116                

-                           1,547,171                154,079                   58,004                     7,713,402                (5,214,841)               32,229,407              

-                           617,915                   (16)                           352,867                   (746,988)                  -                           49,812,554              

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           1,043,430                
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           798,043                   -                           352,867                   -                           -                           44,875,013              
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           221,161                   -                           -                           573,159                   -                           6,172,708                
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           2,566,375                154,079                   410,871                   8,286,561                (5,214,841)               84,320,558              
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Housing Authority of the City of Jersey City
NJ009
Financial Data Schedule (FDS)

Account Description
Line Item #

March 31, 2018

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
10010 Operating transfers in
10020 Operating transfers out
10030 Operating transfers from/to primary government
10040 Operating transfers from/to component unit
10070 Extraordinary items, net gain/loss
10080 Special items (net gain/loss)
10091 Inter Project excess cash transfer in
10092 Inter Project excess cash transfer out
10093 Transfers between program and project in
10094 Transfers between program and project out

10100 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

10000 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

MEMO ACCOUNT INFORMATION:
11020 Required annual debt principal payments

11030 Beginning equity
11040 Prior period adjustments and equity transfers

11170 Administrative fee equity
11180 Housing assistance payments equity

11190 Unit months available
11210 Number of unit months leased

Equity Roll Forward Test:
Calculation from R/E Statement
B/S Line 513

SHELTER PLUS 
CARE STATE/LOCAL

14.870 RESIDENT 
OPPORTUNITY AND 

SUPPORTIVE 
SERVICES

14.267 CONTINIUM 
OF CARE PROGRAM COCC ELIMINATION TOTAL

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           1,054,324                
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           (1,054,324)               
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           637,959                   
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           (637,959)                  
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           1,279,873                
-                           -                           -                           -                           (1,279,873)               -                           (1,279,873)               

-                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           (1,279,873)               -                           

-                           
-$                         (401,289)$                (16)$                         -$                         (2,600,020)$             -$                         (2,278,597)$             

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           1,089,897                

213                          (207,081)                  58                            -                           (7,506,827)               -                           104,553,147            
(213)                         2,153,000                -                           213                          (353,000)                  -                           2,313,981                

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           (1,052,875)               
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           (1,052,875)               
-                           1,512                       471                          -                           -                           83,745                     
-                           1,339                       402                          -                           -                           78,288                     

-$                         1,544,630$              42$                          213$                        (10,459,847)$           104,588,531$          
-$                         1,544,630$              42$                          213$                        (10,459,847)$           107,285,558$          
-$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         (2,697,027)$             
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Jersey City Housing Authority 
Statistical Section (Unaudited) 

 

This part of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents 
detailed information as a context for understanding what the 
information in the financial statements, note disclosers, and required 
supplementary information says about the Authority’s overall financial 
health. The following are the categories of the schedules that are 
included in this Section: 
 
Financial Trends 

 
These schedules contain trend information to help readers 
understand how the Authority’s financial performance and well-
being have changed over time. 

 
Revenue Capacity 

 
This schedule contains information to help the reader assess the 
Authority’s most significant sources of revenue. 
 

Debt Capacity 

 
This schedule presents information to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the Authority’s current level of outstanding debt 
and the Authority’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 
 

Demographic and Economic Information 

 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to 
help the reader understand the environment within which the 
Authority’s financial activities take place. 

 
Operating information 

 
These schedules contain information about the Authority’s 
operations and resources to help the reader understand how the 
Authority’s financial information related to the services the 
Authority provides and activities it performs. 
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(Unaudited) 
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Capital Fund Program Revenue 

Bonds (CFFP Bonds) 5,835,000$      7,145,000$     7,570,000$     7,980,000$     8,370,000$     8,745,000$     9,105,000$     9,450,000$     9,780,000$     10,184,857$   

Energy Saving Equipment (EPC 

Bonds) 5,428,140        7,155,024        7,466,415        8,227,317        8,302,276        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

Loans Payable 10,993,518      9,984,352        2,209,091        2,337,805        3,526,800        3,606,325$     3,680,581$     3,336,947$     3,411,699$     3,577,768$     

Total Bonds and Loans Payable 22,256,658$   24,284,376$  17,245,506$  18,545,122$  20,199,076$  12,351,325$  12,785,581$  12,786,947$  13,191,699$  13,762,625$  

Equity 104,553,147$ 106,432,453$ 139,862,721$ 138,934,682$ 141,720,453$ 146,232,911$ 180,310,737$ 219,285,276$ 213,269,577$ 210,430,368$ 

% Debt to Equity 21.29% 22.82% 12.33% 13.35% 14.25% 8.45% 7.09% 5.83% 6.19% 6.54%

Personal Income* 35,708              35,708             30,775             32,089             30,201             31,332             31,865             29,458             31,643             31,533             

% of Personal Income 0.16% 0.15% 0.18% 0.17% 0.15% 0.25% 0.25% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Population* 264,161           264,161           264,277           262,146           257,345           254,444           250,317           248,005           242,513           229,007           

Total Outstanding Debt Per Capita 84.25                91.93               65.26               70.74               78.49               48.54               51.08               51.56               54.40               60.10               

* 2017 Personal Income and Population are estimated, since 2017 figures are not available.

Source: Annual Financial Statements and Resident Demographics - JCHA Low-Rent Program

Housing Authority of the City of Jersey City

Long Term Bonds and Loans Payable

Note: Percentage of Personal Income and Per Capita calculations are based on total bonds payable using the Jersey City residents demographic information. (Please see JCHA's Demographic and Economic 

Statistics - Ten Year Trend)
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PROJECT NAME AMP TOTAL UNITS ACC UNITS

LAFAYETTE VILLAGE 012 124 77

LAFAYETTE SENIOR LIVING CENTER 013 83 82

PACIFIC COURT 014 72 41

WOODWARD TERRACE 015 70 45

GLORIA ROBINSON COURT HOMES -PHASE I 017 66 57

BARBARA PLACE TERRACE 018 67 40

GLORIA ROBINSON COURT HOMES -PHASE II 019 78 71

OCEAN POINTE EAST AND WEST 020 59 40

GLENNVIEW TOWNHOUSES I 021 63 38

GLORIA ROBINSON COURT HOMES - PHASE III 022 60 24

GLENNVIEW TOWNHOUSES II EAST 023 40 26

GLORIA ROBINSON COURT HOMES - PHASE IV 024 70 27

GLENNVIEW TOWNHOUSES II WEST 025 24 12

CATHERINE TODD APARTMENTS N/A 68 0

 PRIVATELY MANAGED PROPERTIES 944 580

Source: PIH Info rmation Center (PIC)

Housing Authority of the City of Jersey City
Summary of Public Housing Developments in Full Operation

PRIVATELY MANAGED MIXED-FINANCE PROPERTIES 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
 FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners
Jersey City Housing Authority:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Local
Government Services, Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the
Jersey City Housing Authority (the "Authority"), as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Authority's financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated September 14, 2018.  

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Authority's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Authority's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

September 14, 2018
Toms River, New Jersey
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND
STATE OF NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

To the Board of Commissioners
Jersey City Housing Authority:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Jersey City Housing Authority's (the "Authority") compliance with the types of compliance
requirements  described in the Uniform Guidance and the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the Authroity's major federal programs for the year ended March 31,
2018.  The Authority's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority's major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance)  and the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08.  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance and
the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended March 31, 2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit
of compliance, we considered the Authority's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance and State of New Jersey OMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Authority's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

September 14, 2018
Toms River, New Jersey
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Fiscal Year of Report 

Certificate of Achievement For Excellence in Financial Reporting 

Detailed Listing of Comments and Suggestions for Improvement 

Please call GFOA's Technical Services Center at 312-977-9700 regarding comment questions  

Jersey City Housing Authority 
Report # 

Name of Unit: 
FY2017  29.00 GFOA Member ID Number        300212318 

109b - Statement of net assets/balance sheet 
 
Additional Comment:           
 
Page 40 - This comment was provided the past two years and has not been implemented. Note that "designations" of net position 

should not be displayed on the face of the statement of net position, but the major categories of "restricted" net position should be 

displayed on the face of the statement. 
 
The major categories of restricted net position should be displayed on the face of the statement of net position. [GASB-S34: 98; 

GAAFR, pages 234 and 305] 

109c - Statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets/equity 
 
Additional Comment:           
 
Page 41. 
 
The term "fixed assets" should not be used. [GASB-S34: 18] 

113 - Pension-related note disclosures 
 
Additional Comment:           
 
Page 61. 
 
The net pension liability should be measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier than the end of the employer’s prior fiscal 

year end. [GASB-S68: 20] 

Prior CFO quoted GASB 34 Paragraph 98, Designations of Net Assets should not be reported on the face of the financial 
statements. The Audit FYE 03/2018 was approved by the JCHA Board of Resolution prior to the Acting Chief Financial 
Officer/Comptroller receiving GFOA’s 2017 Comments. It will be implemented and corrected in CAFR 03/2019. 

As per NJ Pensions & Benefits (https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/documents/financial/gasb/gasb68-pers18-
val.pdf), “the net pension liability for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 is determined at a measurement date of June 30, 2017. 
The total pension liability as of June 30, 2017 was determined by rolling forward the Plan’s total pension liability as of 
July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. The plan fiduciary net position is the market value of plan assets as of June 30, 2017.” Please 
see Notes to Financial Statements page 62 under E. Actuarial Assumptions of CAFR 17 and Notes to Financial Statements 
page 63 under E. Actuarial Assumptions of CAFR 18. 
 

Loss on disposition of “fixed assets” term is not used in CAFR 2018. See page 42 of Statement of Revenue, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position March 31, 2018 of CAFR FYE 03/2018. 
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113 - Pension-related note disclosures 
 
Checklist Question:    13.16       
 
Page 65 - Clarify that the Authority contributed the required amounts. This comment is provided as a reminder. 
 
Required contributions and the percentages of the required contributions that were actually contributed to a cost-sharing multiple-

employer defined benefit postemployment benefit plan should be presented for the current year and for each of the two preceding 

years. [GASB-S45: 24b3; GASB-TB 2004-2: 2-6; GAAFR, page 369] 

120 - New Pronouncements 
 
Additional Comment:           
 

 
The GASB has issued the following statements:  
 
1. Statement No. 74, "Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans." The requirements of this 

Statement will take effect for financial statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2017.      
2. Statement No. 80, "Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14." The 

requirements of this Statement will take effect for financial statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2017.  
 
Earlier application of these statements is encouraged. For the original pronouncements, please visit the GASB’s website, 

www.gasb.org. 

113 - Pension-related note disclosures 
 
Checklist Question:    13.2i       
 
Page 61 - Refer to the Authority's response to this comment provided last year. Since the measurement date is earlier than the 

current fiscal year end, the amount contributed after the measurement date should be reported as a deferred outflow of resources. 

Refer to the references provided below for further guidance. 
 
It is unclear why the government does not report any contributions made after the measurement date of the net pension 

liability/collective net pension liability, but before the end of the employer’s or governmental nonemployer contributing entity’s 

reporting period. [GASB-S68: 34, 57, 89, and 106] 

The NJ Pensions & Benefits require JCHA to pay annually a normal contribution to the Retirement System. This 
contribution is determined each year on the basis of the annual valuation and represents the value of the benefits to be 
earned in the year following the valuation date. The annual appropriation paid on April 1st each year is based on the 
Pension reported on the 2nd Quarter of two years prior. For April 1, 2018, the appropriation was based from 2nd quarter 
2016. See page 65 Note 11 Post Retirement Benefits of CAFR 2018. 

As per NJ Pensions & Benefits (https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/documents/financial/gasb/gasb68-pers18-
val.pdf), “the net pension liability for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 is determined at a measurement date of June 30, 
2017. The total pension liability as of June 30, 2017 was determined by rolling forward the Plan’s total pension liability 
as of July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. The plan fiduciary net position is the market value of plan assets as of June 30, 2017.” 
Please see Notes to Financial Statements page 62 under E. Actuarial Assumptions of CAFR 17 and Notes to Financial 
Statements page 63 under E. Actuarial Assumptions of CAFR 18. 
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************    END  OF  COMMENTS  FOR REPORT # 29.00 / FY2017   ************ 

120 - New Pronouncements 
 
Additional Comment:           
 

 
The GASB has issued the following statements:  
 
1. Statement No. 75, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions." The requirements 

of this Statement will take effect for financial statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2018. 
2. Statement No. 81, "Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements." The requirements of this Statement will take effect for financial 

statements starting with the fiscal year that ends December 31, 2017.  
3. Statement No. 82, "Pension Issues—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73." The requirements of this 

Statement will take effect for financial statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2017, except for the requirements 

of this Statement for the selection of assumptions in a circumstance in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a 

date other than the employer’s most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements for the selection of assumptions 

will take effect for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the pension liability is on or after 

June 15, 2017.  
4. Statement No. 83, "Certain Asset Retirement Obligations." The requirements of this Statement will take effect for financial 

statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2019. 
5. Statement No. 84, "Fiduciary Activities." The requirements of this Statement will take effect for financial statements starting 

with the fiscal year that ends December 31, 2019. 
6. Statement No. 85, "Omnibus 2017." The requirements of this Statement will take effect for financial statements starting with 

the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2018. 
7. Statement No. 86, "Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues." The requirements of this Statement will take effect for financial 

statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2018. 
8. Statement No. 87, "Leases." The requirements of this Statement will take effect for financial statements starting with the fiscal 

year that ends December 31, 2020. 
 
Earlier application of these statements is encouraged. For the original pronouncements, please visit the GASB’s website, 

www.gasb.org. 
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JCHA in the News… 

 

 
 

JERSEY CITY –– The U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) and the Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD) recognized Jersey City Housing Authority (JCHA) as the nation's first public housing 

authority to achieve its 20 percent energy savings goal as a partner in the Better Buildings Challenge. JCHA 

actually exceeded its goal, reaching 26 percent savings in only six years. 

 

“We are very proud that the JCHA leads the nation as the first public housing authority to meet and exceed 

Better Building Challenge energy savings goals,” said Steven M. Fulop, Mayor of Jersey City. “Through its 

collaborations with stakeholders and strong commitment to innovative green strategies, JCHA offers a 

sustainability model that other multi-family affordable housing providers can follow.” 

 

The Better Buildings Challenge (BBC) is a DOE and HUD program that works with market leaders to drive 

the acceleration of cost-effective and proven strategies to improve the energy efficiency of the nation’s 

buildings, multifamily housing and manufacturing plants. 

 

“We’re incredibly honored to be recognized by the DOE for this achievement and remain thrilled to be a 

partner in this initiative, which has provided us the opportunity to improve our energy savings and 

sustainability practices, and enabled us to better serve residents and to demonstrate the types of innovation, 

leadership and collaboration housing authorities can achieve,” said Vivian Brady-Phillips, Interim Executive 

Director of the JCHA. “We are also grateful for the support and patience of our residents as we worked to 

make these critical improvements.” 

 

JCHA made a public pledge through the BBC in 2013 to improve the energy efficiency of its building 

portfolio by 20 percent over the course of 10 years. JCHA is one of 43 public housing authorities across the 

country to take the BBC pledge. Through its efforts, JCHA has reached 26 percent savings across its portfolio 

due to greater organization wide efficiency efforts. JCHA’s savings are now part of cumulative savings of 

$3.1 billion since the launch of the BBC partnership in 2011. 

 

“Congratulations to Jersey City Housing Authority for achieving its energy reduction goal as part of the 

Better Buildings Challenge,” said Daniel Simmons, Principal Deputy Assistant Secretary for the Office of 

Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy. “Our goal achievers have demonstrated leadership, hard work and 

an impressive willingness to share ideas with their peers. We look forward to seeing the next set of goals they 

put into action.” 

 

JCHA focused on agency-wide green initiatives and energy-efficient modernization of its properties as an 

opportunity to save energy and improve efficiency across its 1.5 million square foot portfolio. Specifically, 

through HUD’s Energy Performance Contracting program, the JCHA partnered with Siemens Industry, Inc. 

beginning in 2008, enabling JCHA to modernize units with HVAC controls, energy saving lighting and water 

efficiency improvements. These efforts enabled the JCHA to install a solar hot water heating system at 

Holland Gardens, the first solar hot water system installed in a public housing authority site in the state of 

New Jersey. More details on the strategies employed to achieve this goal can be found online in the newly 

redesigned Better Buildings Solution Center. 
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“We are very proud to be energy efficiency partners with JCHA and continue to bring the best solutions to 

the table to ensure their goals are exceeded. Congratulations on a well-earned national reward and the 

recognition JCHA deserves for being a trail blazer in energy reduction” said David Turner, Siemens Regional 

Manager for Energy & Sustainability Through Better Buildings, DOE and HUD aim to make multifamily 

residential, commercial, public and industrial buildings 20% more energy efficient over the next decade. This 

means saving billions of dollars on energy bills, reducing emissions, and creating thousands of jobs. 

 

JCHA is New Jersey’s second largest public housing authority, serving over 18,000 residents and responsible 

for the administration of approximately 7,100 housing units, including approximately 2,500 public housing 

units and over 4,600 Housing Choice Vouchers. The JCHA has been lauded as a champion of energy 

efficiency and green building practices, policies promoting Section 3 hiring, and an impeccable track record 

of revitalizing distressed public housing. In addition, JCHA continually seeks to expand partnerships with 

community organizations to provide an array of services and programming to residents and establish strong 

referral relationships. 

 

Siemens is a global technology powerhouse that has stood for engineering excellence, innovation, quality, 

reliability and internationality for 170 years. The company is active around the globe, focusing on the areas 

of electrification, automation and digitalization. One of the world’s largest producers of energy-efficient, 

resource-saving technologies, Siemens is a leading supplier of efficient power generation and power 

transmission solutions and a pioneer in energy efficient infrastructure solutions as well as automation, drive 

and software solutions for industry. 
 

Source: http://hudsonreporter.com/view/full_story/27596909/article-JERSEY-CITY-BRIEFS  
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P  609.393.3752   145 West Hanover Street    Trenton, NJ 08618 
Like us: www.facebook.com/hcdnnj www.hcdnnj.org    Follow us: @hcdnnj  

 

September 25, 2018 

 

Vivian Brady Philipps 

 

Dear Vivian: 

 

Congratulations! I am so pleased to let you know that the Housing and Community Development Network of 

New Jersey (“the Network”) will present Jersey City Housing Authority with our Lasting Achievement Award.  

This award category recognizes the success of our community development members who have reached a 

milestone anniversary.  We want to be sure to celebrate your success and honor your tireless efforts to improve 

the lives of the people you serve. 

 

I hope you will be able to join us as our guest on October 12, 2018 at the Hyatt New Brunswick to accept this 

award in person with our members and allies at Under One Roof, our annual community development 

conference and membership meeting. We are offering you two complimentary tickets for the conference. The 

full conference agenda is available on our website at https://www.hcdnnj.org/network-conference. The awards 

portion of our agenda will start at the conclusion of lunch. 

 

In addition to Jersey City Housing Authority, the Network will also present this milestone award to:  

Catholic Charities-Diocese of Trenton, Manufactured Homeowners Association, NewBridge Services, Inc., New 

Community Corporation, East Brunswick Community Housing Corporation, Homeless Solutions, Leviticus 

Fund, Cooper's Ferry Development Association aka Cooper's Ferry Partnership, Lutheran Episcopal Advocacy 

Ministry of NJ, Mission First Housing Group, Interfaith Neighbors, Bridges Outreach, Inc., HANDS, Inc., and 

Homes of Montclair Ecumenical Corporation (HOMECorp).  

 

We will also honor the City of Union City and Egg Harbor Township for Revitalization, Montclair Township 

and Woodbridge Township for New Development, and Northern Ocean Habitat for Humanity for Healthy 

Homes and Communities. Receiving the Media Award is Shelterforce, and the Advocacy and Organizing Award 

is Morris Habitat for Humanity. We are also honoring New Jersey Citizen Action as our 2018 Exceptional 

Community Partner, and The Honorable Troy Singleton, New Jersey State Senate (LD-7), as the Community 

Development Champion of the year. In addition, this year we are presenting the Jerry Green Legacy Award to 

Rev. Bruce Davidson, Network Board of Directors Emeritus Member, and inducting into the Hall of Heroes 

Assemblywoman Britnee Timberlake (LD-34). 

 
Kindly confirm your attendance by Wednesday, October 3, with Denise Ladden (DMLadden@hcdnnj.org). Let 

Denise or me know if there is anything we can do to make this event a success for all of you. 

 

Again, congratulations and many thanks for everything you do! I am so happy to be able to shine a spotlight on 

all of your hard work.  We look forward to seeing you on October 12! 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

 

Staci A. Berger 

President & CEO 
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